
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordhsire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Martha Clampitt 

direct line 0300 300 4032 
date 9 December 2010  

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 
Tuesday, 21 December 2010 10.00 a.m. 

 
Venue at 

Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 
 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs J Street (Chairman), Mrs D B Gurney (Vice-Chairman), Mrs A Barker, 
P A Blaine, D Bowater, N B Costin, Dr R Egan, P Hollick, K Janes and 
A Shadbolt 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
 
Cllrs: I Dalgarno, Mrs S A Goodchild, J G Jamieson, Mrs M Mustoe and 
A M Turner] 

 
All other Members of the Council - on request 

 
         NOTE: PLEASE BRING YOUR COPY OF THE EXECUTIVE 
      AGENDA FOR THE MEETING HELD ON 7 DECEMBER 2010 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 
MEETING 



 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members 
 

2. MINUTES 
  

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings of the Children’s 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 23 November 2010 and 
30 November 2010 and to note actions taken since that meeting.  
 

(to follow) 
 

3. MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
  

To receive from Members any declarations and the nature in relation to:- 
 
(a) personal interests in any agenda item 
 
(b) personal and prejudicial interests in any agenda item 
 
(c) any political whip in relation to any agenda item. 
 
 

4. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

5. PETITIONS 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

6. QUESTIONS, STATEMENTS OR DEPUTATIONS 
  

To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

7. CALL-IN 
  

To consider any decision of the Executive referred to this Committee for 
review  in accordance with Procedure Rule 10.10 of Part D2.   
 



8. REQUESTED ITEMS 
  

To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member 
under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution. 
 

 
Reports 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

9 Portfolio Holder Update 
 
To receive a verbal update from the Portfolio Holder 
regarding current issues within Children’s Services. 
 

 

10 Base Budget Build and Savings Proposals 
 
To receive directorate’s activities and savings proposals 
regarding the base revenue budget 2011/12. 
 

*  5 - 12 

11 Budget Strategy Update 
 
To consider an update on the Council’s budget strategy. 
 
Note: Please bring your copy of the Executive 
agenda for the meeting held on 7 December 2010 
as you will need to refer to it when considering this 
item. 
 

  

12 Quarter 2 Budget Information 
 
To receive the directorate’s projected full year forecast 
as at 30 September 2010. 
 

*  13 - 34 

13 The Future of Special Schooling in the South of 
Central Bedfordshire: Proposal to publish Statutory 
Notices to discontinue the Dyslexia Provision at 
Priory Middle School 
 
To consider the amended options for special educational 
needs provisions that are subject to statutory 
consultations and therefore do not fall within the remit of 
delegations to the Director of Children’s Services or the 
budget consultation process.  These are the future of 
special schooling in the South of Central Bedfordshire 
and the dyslexia unit in Priory Middle School. 
 

*  35 - 44 

14 Quarter 2 Performance Monitoring 
 
To receive performance monitoring information for the 
second quarter of 2010/11. 
 
 

*  45 - 50 



 
 
 
 
 

15 Work Programme 2010 - 2011 & Executive Forward 
Plan 
 
To provide Members with details of the currently drafted 
Committee work programme and the latest Executive 
Forward Plan. 
 

*  51 - 76 

 



 
 
 
Meeting: Children Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 21st December 2010 

Subject: Base Budget Build and Savings Proposals 

Report of: Cllr Anita Lewis, Portfolio Holder for Children Services 

Summary: The report sets out the outcome of the work to review Central 
Bedfordshire’s Base Budget, an outline of the Directorate’s activities and 
savings proposals for 2011/12 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Edwina Grant, Director of Children Services 

Public/Exempt: N/A 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: N/A 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
N/A 
 
Financial: 

N/A 
 
Legal: 

N/A 
 
Risk Management: 

N/A 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

N/A 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

N/A 
 
Community Safety: 

N/A 
 
Sustainability: 

N/A 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 5



 
RECOMMENDATION: 

1. that the Children Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee considers the 
report and provides feedback to the Executive. 
 

 
 
INTRODUCTION 

1. The Budget Process agreed by the Executive in August identified two areas of 
work which it wished to put forward to the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Committees for comment. These were the Base Budget Build and the Savings 
Proposals which were being developed in response to the policy agenda of the 
Coalition Government. Further, the 2010/11 Budget Process had focussed on 
pressures and efficiencies and there is a requirement in 2011/12 to consider 
these issues in the context of the full spending plans of each of the directorates. 

2. 

 

The report deals with each of the issues in turn: 

• Base Budget Build; 

• Service description and subjective analysis of spend; and  

• Savings proposals. 

3. 

 

The initial Corporate Budget Strategy was based on headline figures in the 
Emergency Budget in June which indicated a 25% reduction in Government 
spending over the medium term. The most up to date information from the 
Spending Review in October has indicated a ‘front loading’ of the reduction and 
the Strategy assumptions have been revised as a consequence. The initial 
savings proposals were considered by Overview and Scrutiny Committees in 
November. Therefore, this report gives the opportunity to provide feedback to 
the Executive on the supplementary savings proposals put forward in the 
update report to the December Executive.  

BASE BUDGET BUILD 

4. A major piece of work has been undertaken as part of the budget process to 
provide additional assurance on the 2011/12 budget. 

5. 

 

The 2010/11 budget process was very much ‘top down’ with a focus on 
pressures and efficiencies at the margins rather than a focus on ensuring that 
the Council’s budget matched its cost base. 

6. 

 

For 2011/12 work on the base budget has run in parallel with the work on 
identifying savings to address the medium term funding gap driven primarily 
through reductions in Government spending as the Country’s budget deficit is 
addressed. 

Approach 

7. 

 

The starting position for the build has been the forecast outturn position as a 30 
September 2010. The key tasks have been to assess whether existing 
pressures will persist into 2011/12 and whether actions such as holding 
vacancies and non discretionary spend can continue longer term. Where such 
reductions are possible these will be brought forward as savings reductions. 

Agenda Item 10
Page 6



8. 

 

Additionally, there has been a review of the budgets down to ‘general ledger’ 
code detail to ensure that budgets are accurately held in individual cost centres. 
This gives additional assurance that the overall cost base and budget match 
and will make monitoring more straightforward for the remainder of this financial 
year as well as for 2011/12 and beyond. 

Council Wide Position 

9. 

 

Whilst the forecast pressures of £3.25M as at 30 September are significantly 
reduced compared to the position at 30 June, this is not sustainable in the 
longer term and additions of £6.35M are required to the Base Budget. 

10. There has been challenge on the numbers throughout but the overall figure is   
greater than had been expected. Nevertheless, it is important that these are 
built into the base to give greater confidence in delivering the budget in 
2011/12.  

  

 

 Base 
Budget 
Build 

Already 
reflected in 
Strategy 

Total 

 £M £M £M 

Social Care Health & 
Housing 

2.222 0 2.222 

Children’s Services 3.395 1.000 2.395 

Sustainable Communities 1.355 0.250 1.105 

Customer & Shared 
Services 

1.133 0 1.133 

Office of the Chief 
Executive 

0.074 0 0.074 

Corporate Costs -0.577 0 -0.577 

Total General Fund 7.602 1.250 6.352 

HRA -0.308 0 -0.308 

Total 7.294 1.250 6.044 

11. The detail position for the Children Services Directorate is set out in Appendix A 
and a brief summary of the key issues is set out below.  

Directorate Summary 

12. The base budget build reflects a pressure to take forward to 2011/12 of £3.4m.   
This is mainly due to £1.3m social care pressure relating to an increase in 
children referrals.  The Children’s Social Care pressure has been flagged in the 
monthly monitoring reports since the start of the financial year.  Efficiencies built 
into the base budget for 2009/10 that have been met in year by compensatory 
savings of £700k. The review of budget down to ‘general ledger’ level has also 
identified budget build errors of circa £1m.  

Agenda Item 10
Page 7



13. The forecast out-turn position as at September 2010 stood at £1.4m overspend 
which has been maintained at that level as a result of freezing discretionary 
spends and held vacancy savings during the year subject to directorate 
reorganisation. 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION & SUBJECTIVE SPEND ANALYSIS 

14. 

 

In 2010/11 Overview & Scrutiny Committees were only presented with the 
pressures and efficiency proposals. For 2011/12 it has been agreed that more 
information on spend and activity of the key services in each directorate was 
required to give context to the proposals being considered. 

15. 

 

Appendix B provides a description of the activities undertaken in the directorate  
and also analyses the base budget spend by subjective heading,  i.e. 
employees, premises, supplies & services etc. 

SAVINGS PROPOSALS 

16. 

 

Two reports have been presented to the Executive on the Corporate Budget 
Strategy for 2010/11. The initial report to Executive on 2 November was based 
on the anticipated reductions in government funding announced in the Coalition 
Emergency Budget in June. The Strategy considered these alongside a 
potential freeze in Council Tax and known medium terms pressures being 
experienced in Central Bedfordshire including increased safeguarding referrals, 
demographic growth in the older population and higher costs of waste disposal. 

17. 

 

The second report to Executive on 7 December was in response to the further 
detail contained in the Spending Review announcement on 20 October. There 
has been a ‘front loading’ of the Government spending reductions which place 
greater pressure on Central Bedfordshire’s resources in 2011/12 and 2012/13. 
The outcome of the Base Budget Build exercise has also been factored into the 
update. There is more detail becoming available on almost a daily basis and a 
more definitive picture expected when the Local Government Finance 
Settlement is announced in early/mid December. Consequently, there will be a 
need for a continuous reappraisal of the financial position. 

 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Budget build by Directorate at Head of Service level. 
Appendix B – Service spend by subjective heading and service narrative 
 
 
Background Papers: (open to public inspection) 
 
Corporate Budget Strategy – Executive, 2 November 2010 
Corporate Budget Strategy Update – Executive, 7 December 2010 
 

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 8



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
A

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

D
E
C
IS
IO
N
P
O
IN
T

L
at
es
t
20
10
/1
1
B
u
d
g
et
/B
as
e
20
11
/1
2

20
10
/1
1
F
o
re
ca
st
V
ar
ia
n
ce

P
re
ss
u
re
/S
av
in
g

A
d
ju
st
o
n
e
o
ff
's
an
d
P
re
ss
u
re
s/
S
av
in
g
s

M
an
ag
ed
in
Y
ea
r

P
re
ss
u
re
s/
S
av
in
g
s
to
ta
ke
F
o
rw
ar
d

20
11
/1
2
F
Y
E
o
f
20
10
/1
1
D
ec
is
io
n
s

20
11
/1
2
S
ta
n
d
st
ill
B
u
d
g
et
at
20
10
/1
1
P
ri
ce
s

E
xp
en
d
it
u
re

In
co
m
e

N
et

E
xp
en
d
it
u
re

In
co
m
e

N
et

E
xp
en
d
it
u
re

In
co
m
e

N
et

E
xp
en
d
it
u
re

In
co
m
e

N
et

E
xp
en
d
it
u
re

In
co
m
e

N
et

E
xp
en
d
it
u
re

In
co
m
e

N
et

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

(A
)

(B
)

(A
+B
=C
)

(D
)

(E
)

(D
+E
=F
)

(G
)

(H
)

(G
+H
=I
)

(D
+G
=J
)

(E
+H
=K
)

(F
+I
=L
)

(M
)

(N
)
(M
+N
=O
)

(A
+J
+M
=P
)

(B
+K
+N
=Q
)

(C
+L
+O
=R
)

D
ire
ct
or
s
C
os
tC
en
tr
e
T
ot
al

35
4,
90
2

-1
70
,1
73

18
4,
72
9

16
7,
14
9

-1
67
,1
76

-2
7

-1
67
,1
49

16
7,
17
6

27
0

0
0

0
0

0
35
4,
90
2

-1
70
,1
73

18
4,
72
9

D
ir
ec
to
r
o
f
C
h
ild
re
n
S
er
vi
ce
s
To
ta
l

35
4,
90
2

-1
70
,1
73

18
4,
72
9

16
7,
14
9

-1
67
,1
76

-2
7

-1
67
,1
49

16
7,
17
6

27
0

0
0

0
0

0
35
4,
90
2

-1
70
,1
73

18
4,
72
9

A
D
-
C
S
S
T
ot
al

6,
82
3,
88
8

-1
,3
26
,9
64

5,
49
6,
92
4

61
4,
09
1

-4
82
,4
97

13
1,
59
3

-2
55
,7
47

58
6,
41
0

33
0,
66
3

35
8,
34
4

10
3,
91
3

46
2,
25
6

1
0

0
0

7,
18
2,
23
2

-1
,2
23
,0
51

5,
95
9,
18
1

S
E
N
&
In
cl
us
io
n
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

8,
05
7,
54
8

-7
,0
58
,0
23

99
9,
52
6

58
7,
16
4

-4
5,
23
9

54
1,
92
6

28
5,
66
9

10
9,
91
0

39
5,
57
9

87
2,
83
3

64
,6
71

93
7,
50
5

2
0

0
0

8,
93
0,
38
2

-6
,9
93
,3
51

1,
93
7,
03
0

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
&
C
hi
ld
re
n
in
C
ar
e
T
ot
al

4,
89
5,
65
3

-9
88
,1
37

3,
90
7,
51
6

1,
86
8,
52
5

-5
78
,2
49

1,
29
0,
27
6

0
0

0
1,
86
8,
52
5

-5
78
,2
49

1,
29
0,
27
6

3
0

0
0

6,
76
4,
17
9

-1
,5
66
,3
86

5,
19
7,
79
3

C
hi
ld
re
n
w
ith
D
is
ab
ili
tie
s
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
T
ot
al

4,
35
1,
09
5

-1
,3
35
,4
01

3,
01
5,
69
4

-2
5,
03
9

24
,8
69

-1
70

12
5,
04
1

26
2,
23
8

38
7,
27
9

10
0,
00
2

28
7,
10
7

38
7,
10
9

4
0

0
0

4,
45
1,
09
7

-1
,0
48
,2
94

3,
40
2,
80
3

Q
ua
lit
y
A
ss
ur
an
ce
C
R
S
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

76
4,
55
0

0
76
4,
55
0

14
5,
81
0

-6
7,
40
0

78
,4
10

-9
2,
80
9

14
,4
00

-7
8,
40
9

53
,0
01

-5
3,
00
0

1
5

0
0

0
81
7,
55
1

-5
3,
00
0

76
4,
55
1

F
os
te
rin
g
&
A
do
pt
io
n
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

5,
07
4,
09
9

-2
,5
84
,6
69

2,
48
9,
43
0

69
8,
21
6

-7
24
,7
08

-2
6,
49
2

-4
94
,6
56

55
1,
12
1

56
,4
65

20
3,
56
0

-1
73
,5
87

29
,9
73

6
0

0
0

5,
27
7,
65
8

-2
,7
58
,2
56

2,
51
9,
40
2

Lo
ca
lS
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
B
oa
rd
T
ot
al

25
1,
15
1

-2
03
,7
60

47
,3
91

69
,7
31

-4
9,
88
6

19
,8
45

-7
2,
15
3

70
,9
38

-1
,2
15

-2
,4
22

21
,0
52

18
,6
30

7
0

0
0

24
8,
72
9

-1
82
,7
08

66
,0
22

In
te
gr
at
ed
Y
ou
th
S
up
po
rt
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

3,
18
7,
53
7

-1
,4
14
,0
28

1,
77
3,
50
9

48
0,
46
5

-5
92
,5
58

-1
12
,0
94

-4
80
,4
63

59
2,
55
9

11
2,
09
6

2
1

2
8

0
0

0
3,
18
7,
53
9

-1
,4
14
,0
28

1,
77
3,
51
1

In
te
gr
at
ed
P
ro
ce
ss
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

1,
56
9,
23
3

-4
35
,0
60

1,
13
4,
17
3

10
9,
74
8

-1
09
,7
89

-4
1

-1
09
,7
51

10
9,
78
9

38
-3

0
-3

0
0

0
1,
56
9,
23
0

-4
35
,0
60

1,
13
4,
17
0

E
ar
ly
In
te
rv
en
tio
n
/P
re
ve
nt
io
n
S
er
v
M
an
T
ot
al

9,
47
7,
51
2

-9
,1
81
,7
93

29
5,
71
9

-1
67
,5
15

13
9,
70
1

-2
7,
81
4

-1
6,
00
0

16
,0
00

0
-1
83
,5
15

15
5,
70
1

-2
7,
81
4

9
0

0
0

9,
29
3,
99
7

-9
,0
26
,0
92

26
7,
90
5

C
h
ild
re
n
s
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
p
er
at
io
n
s
To
ta
l

44
,4
52
,2
66

-2
4,
52
7,
83
4

19
,9
24
,4
32

4,
38
1,
19
6

-2
,4
85
,7
57

1,
89
5,
43
9

-1
,1
10
,8
69

2,
31
3,
36
5

1,
20
2,
49
6

3,
27
0,
32
7

-1
72
,3
92

3,
09
7,
93
5

0
0

0
47
,7
22
,5
93

-2
4,
70
0,
22
6

23
,0
22
,3
67

A
D
-
Le
ar
ni
ng
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g
T
ot
al

79
5,
86
0

-1
45
,2
48

65
0,
61
2

39
,1
87

-1
02
,2
14

-6
3,
02
7

-3
9,
18
9

10
2,
21
4

63
,0
25

-2
0

-2
10

0
0

0
79
5,
85
8

-1
45
,2
48

65
0,
61
0

P
ol
ic
y
&
S
tr
at
eg
y
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

19
5,
93
3

0
19
5,
93
3

-6
9,
87
9

0
-6
9,
87
9

69
,8
79

0
69
,8
79

0
0

0
11

0
0

0
19
5,
93
3

0
19
5,
93
3

Jo
in
tS
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m
is
si
on
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
T
ot
al

36
2,
26
6

-4
78

36
1,
78
8

-2
8,
44
5

0
-2
8,
44
5

28
,4
46

0
28
,4
46

1
0

1
12

0
0

0
36
2,
26
7

-4
78

36
1,
78
9

JS
C
S
T
ra
ns
po
rt
T
ot
al

8,
91
2,
89
9

-2
57
,9
61

8,
65
4,
93
8

-2
7,
15
6

-6
9,
91
0

-9
7,
06
6

82
,6
44

14
,4
22

97
,0
66

55
,4
88

-5
5,
48
8

0
13

0
0

0
8,
96
8,
38
7

-3
13
,4
49

8,
65
4,
93
8

H
ea
d
of
14
-1
9
C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g
&
S
ki
lls
T
ot
al

14
7,
03
4

-1
47
,0
34

0
2,
72
2,
69
5

-2
,7
49
,2
89

-2
6,
59
4

-2
,7
22
,6
96

2,
74
9,
28
9

26
,5
93

-1
0

-1
14

0
0

0
14
7,
03
3

-1
47
,0
34

-1
S
ch
oo
lS
up
po
rt
S
er
vi
ce
T
ot
al

11
,4
07
,4
46

-1
1,
13
0,
05
7

27
7,
38
9

91
,2
28

14
4,
32
3

23
5,
55
1

-9
1,
22
9

-1
44
,3
22

-2
35
,5
51

-1
1

0
15

0
0

0
11
,4
07
,4
45

-1
1,
13
0,
05
6

27
7,
38
9

O
th
er
S
ch
oo
lB
ud
ge
ts
T
ot
al

44
3,
82
1

-4
06
,7
03

37
,1
19

-2
9,
97
6

29
,9
76

0
-7
,1
43

-2
9,
97
6

-3
7,
11
9

-3
7,
11
9

0
-3
7,
11
9

16
0

0
0

40
6,
70
3

-4
06
,7
03

0
H
ea
d
O
fP
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
&
W
or
kf
or
ce
D
ev
T
ot
al

2,
63
8,
31
3

-1
,9
38
,5
34

69
9,
77
8

44
2,
82
1

-5
76
,6
08

-1
33
,7
86

-4
33
,0
56

70
6,
81
0

27
3,
75
4

9,
76
5

13
0,
20
2

13
9,
96
8

17
0

0
0

2,
64
8,
07
8

-1
,8
08
,3
32

83
9,
74
6

S
ch
oo
lI
m
pr
ov
em
en
tT
ot
al

4,
32
4,
36
3

-2
,7
01
,5
53

1,
62
2,
81
1

-1
45
,8
34

-2
05
,8
30

-3
51
,6
64

-4
79
,3
86

76
2,
77
1

28
3,
38
5

-6
25
,2
20

55
6,
94
1

-6
8,
27
9

18
0

0
0

3,
69
9,
14
3

-2
,1
44
,6
12

1,
55
4,
53
2

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
F
un
d
T
ot
al

14
,1
42
,3
36

-1
4,
14
2,
33
6

0
11
2,
27
4

-1
37
,5
64

-2
5,
29
0

-2
15
,8
74

24
1,
16
4

25
,2
90

-1
03
,6
00

10
3,
60
0

0
19

0
0

0
14
,0
38
,7
36

-1
4,
03
8,
73
6

0
S
ch
oo
ls
IC
T
T
ot
al

37
0,
26
2

-6
5,
24
9

30
5,
01
3

84
5,
94
8

-8
53
,7
52

-7
,8
03

-8
45
,9
48

85
3,
75
2

7,
80
4

0
0

1
0

0
0

37
0,
26
2

-6
5,
24
9

30
5,
01
3

M
us
ic
S
er
vi
ce
T
ot
al

2,
44
4,
78
7

-2
,1
72
,9
71

27
1,
81
5

79
7,
70
7

-7
88
,7
83

8,
92
4

-7
97
,7
26

78
8,
78
2

-8
,9
44

-1
9

-1
-2
0

0
0

0
2,
44
4,
76
8

-2
,1
72
,9
73

27
1,
79
5

S
ch
oo
lO
rg
an
is
at
io
n
&
C
ap
ita
lP
la
nn
in
g
T
ot
al

4,
27
5,
34
7

-3
,0
01
,9
34

1,
27
3,
41
3

13
3,
38
2

-6
9,
82
5

63
,5
57

-3
6,
76
9

0
-3
6,
76
9

96
,6
13

-6
9,
82
5

26
,7
88

20
0

0
0

4,
37
1,
96
0

-3
,0
71
,7
59

1,
30
0,
20
1

L
ea
rn
in
g
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
To
ta
l

50
,4
60
,6
67

-3
6,
11
0,
05
9

14
,3
50
,6
08

4,
88
3,
95
4

-5
,3
79
,4
76

-4
95
,5
23

-5
,4
88
,0
47

6,
04
4,
90
6

55
6,
85
9

-6
04
,0
93

66
5,
43
0

61
,3
36

0
0

0
49
,8
56
,5
74

-3
5,
44
4,
62
9

14
,4
11
,9
45

N
u
rs
er
y
S
ch
o
o
ls
To
ta
l

0
1,
42
8,
44
8

1,
42
8,
44
8

12
1,
89
4

-1
21
,8
94

1
-1
21
,8
94

12
1,
89
3

-1
0

-1
0

0
0

0
0

1,
42
8,
44
7

1,
42
8,
44
8

L
o
w
er
S
ch
o
o
ls
To
ta
l

0
49
,9
82
,7
80

49
,9
82
,7
80

41
6,
85
4

-4
16
,8
54

0
-4
16
,8
54

41
6,
85
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

49
,9
82
,7
80

49
,9
82
,7
80

M
id
d
le
S
ch
o
o
ls
To
ta
l

0
38
,9
75
,5
21

38
,9
75
,5
21

-7
14
,7
05

71
4,
70
5

0
71
4,
70
5

-7
14
,7
05

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

38
,9
75
,5
21

38
,9
75
,5
21

U
p
p
er
S
ch
o
o
ls
To
ta
l

0
49
,9
52
,8
56

49
,9
52
,8
56

-5
87
,1
19

58
7,
11
9

0
58
7,
11
9

-5
87
,1
19

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

49
,9
52
,8
56

49
,9
52
,8
56

S
p
ec
ia
lS
ch
o
o
ls
To
ta
l

0
8,
15
3,
41
7

8,
15
3,
41
7

-3
5,
83
7

35
,8
38

0
35
,8
37

-3
5,
83
8

-1
0

0
-1

0
0

0
0

8,
15
3,
41
7

8,
15
3,
41
6

D
ev
o
lv
ed
F
o
rm
u
la
C
ap
it
al
To
ta
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

IS
B
F
u
n
d
ed
B
y
D
S
G
/Y
P
L
A
To
ta
l

0
-1
48
,6
07
,1
34

-1
48
,6
07
,1
34

0
0

0
0

11
4,
11
2

11
4,
11
2

0
11
4,
11
2

11
4,
11
2
21

0
0

0
0

-1
48
,4
93
,0
22

-1
48
,4
93
,0
22

C
en
tr
al
D
S
G
/Y
P
L
A
To
ta
l

1,
05
6,
90
4

-2
,9
80
,4
26

-1
,9
23
,5
23

-1
06
,5
65

10
6,
56
5

0
-1
72
,6
82

29
4,
29
1

12
1,
60
9

-2
79
,2
47

40
0,
85
6

12
1,
60
9
22

0
0

0
77
7,
65
7

-2
,5
79
,5
70

-1
,8
01
,9
14

C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s
T
O
T
A
L

96
,3
24
,7
39

-6
3,
90
2,
60
4

32
,4
22
,1
35

8,
52
6,
82
1
-7
,1
26
,9
30

1,
39
9,
89
1

-6
,1
39
,8
34

8,
13
4,
93
5
1,
99
5,
10
1

2,
38
6,
98
7
1,
00
8,
00
5
3,
39
4,
99
2

0
0

0
98
,7
11
,7
26

-6
2,
89
4,
59
9

35
,8
17
,1
27

C
O
M
M
E
N
TS

W
e
w
ill
no
tb
e
ta
ki
ng
ba
se
bu
dg
et
fig
ur
es
to

ov
er
vi
ew

an
d
sc
ru
tin
y
at
pr
of
it
ce
nt
re
le
ve
l.
W
e

w
ill
be
re
po
rt
in
g
do
w
n
to
th
e
lo
w
es
tl
ev
el
sh
ow
n
in

B
ud
ge
tM
on
ito
rin
g,
se
e
w
or
ke
d
ex
am
pl
es
be
lo
w
.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
re
ss
u
re
s
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
m
ai
n
ly
m
ad
e
u
p
as
fo
llo
w
s:

1
A
D
-
C
S
S

2
S
E
N
&
In
cl
u
si
o
n
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er

£9
38
k
m
ad
e
up
of
un
ac
he
iv
ab
le
ef
fic
ie
nc
ie
nc
y
bu
ilt
in
to
10
/1
1
re
la
tin
g
to
de
ve
lo
pm
en
to
fa
lte
rn
at
iv
e
pr
ov
is
io
n
fo
r
O
ut
of
C
ou
nt
y
P
la
ce
m
en
ts
lin
ke
d
to
th
e
ca
pi
ta
lb
ui
ld
at
O
ak
ba
nk

al
on
gs
id
e

pr
es
su
re
at
tr
ib
ut
ab
le
to
la
rg
e
nu
m
be
r
of
ch
ild
re
n
at
te
nd
in
g
ot
he
r
LA
S
ch
oo
ls
an
d
va
ca
nc
ie
s
in
ou
r
ow
n
sc
ho
ol
s

3
S
af
eg
u
ar
d
in
g
&
C
h
ild
re
n
in
C
ar
e

4
C
h
ild
re
n
w
it
h
D
is
ab
ili
ti
es
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag

£3
87
k
pr
es
su
re
m
ad
e
of
£2
82
k
re
sp
ite
re
ch
ar
ge
ov
er
es
tim
at
ed
in
ba
se
bu
dg
et
no
ta
ch
ie
va
bl
e
al
lp
la
ce
s
in
ho
m
es
ar
e
us
ed
pl
us
£1
00
k
pr
es
su
re
on
D
ire
ct
pa
ym
en
ts
fo
r
D
is
ab
le
d
C
hi
ld
re
n

5
Q
u
al
it
y
A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
C
R
S
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er

N
o
pr
es
su
re
go
in
g
fo
rw
ar
d
-
£7
8k
pr
es
su
re
id
en
tif
ie
d
in
10
/1
1
re
la
te
s
to
in
ye
ar
ag
en
cy
/s
ic
kn
es
s
pr
es
su
re
s

6
F
o
st
er
in
g
&
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er

7
L
o
ca
lS
af
eg
u
ar
d
in
g
C
h
ild
re
n
's
B
o
ar
d

£1
9k
B
as
e
bu
dg
et
bu
ild
er
ro
r
-
on
e
of
fr
ec
ei
pt
.
N
ot
ap
pr
op
ria
te
to
ha
ve
in
co
m
e
ta
rg
et
fo
r
fu
nd
s
he
ld
on
be
ha
lf
of
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip

8
In
te
g
ra
te
d
Y
o
u
th
S
u
p
p
o
rt
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er

9
E
ar
ly
In
te
rv
en
ti
o
n
/P
re
ve
n
ti
o
n
S
er
v
M
an

10
A
D
-
L
ea
rn
in
g
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

N
o
pr
es
su
re
or
sa
vi
ng
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
In
ye
ar
sa
vi
ng
s
10
/1
1
as
a
re
su
lt
of
he
ld
va
ca
nc
ie
s
su
bj
ec
tt
o
di
re
ct
or
at
e
re
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n

11
P
o
lic
y
&
S
tr
at
eg
y
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er

N
o
pr
es
su
re
or
sa
vi
ng
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
In
ye
ar
sa
vi
ng
s
10
/1
1
as
a
re
su
lt
of
he
ld
va
ca
nc
ie
s
su
bj
ec
tt
o
di
re
ct
or
at
e
re
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n

12
Jo
in
t
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag

N
o
pr
es
su
re
or
sa
vi
ng
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
In
ye
ar
sa
vi
ng
s
10
/1
1
as
a
re
su
lt
of
he
ld
va
ca
nc
ie
s
su
bj
ec
tt
o
di
re
ct
or
at
e
re
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n

13
JS
C
S
Tr
an
sp
o
rt

N
o
pr
es
su
re
or
sa
vi
ng
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
In
ye
ar
sa
vi
ng
re
la
te
d
to
re
ne
go
tia
tio
n
of
co
nt
ra
ct
an
d
se
rv
ic
e
de
liv
er
y

14
H
ea
d
o
f
16
-1
9
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
&
S
ki
lls

N
o
pr
es
su
re
or
sa
vi
ng
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
In
ye
ar
sa
vi
ng
s
10
/1
1
as
a
re
su
lt
of
he
ld
va
ca
nc
ie
s
su
bj
ec
tt
o
di
re
ct
or
at
e
re
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n

15
S
ch
o
o
lS
u
p
p
o
rt
S
er
vi
ce

N
o
pr
es
su
re
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
in
ye
ar
pr
es
su
re
re
la
te
s
to
P
R
U
.
N
ew

de
liv
er
y
m
od
el
fo
r
11
/1
2.

16
O
th
er
S
ch
o
o
lB
u
d
g
et
s

17
H
ea
d
O
f
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
&
W
o
rk
fo
rc
e
D
ev

18
S
ch
o
o
lI
m
p
ro
ve
m
en
t

£6
8K
S
av
in
g
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
to
11
/1
2
du
e
to
bu
dg
et
bu
ild
er
ro
r
-
In
ye
ar
sa
vi
ng
s
10
/1
1
he
ld
va
ca
nc
ie
s
an
d
fr
ee
zi
ng
of
di
sc
re
tio
na
ry
sp
en
d

19
S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s
F
u
n
d

N
o
pr
es
su
re
or
sa
vi
ng
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
In
ye
ar
sa
vi
ng
s
10
/1
1
as
a
re
su
lt
of
un
sp
en
tu
nr
in
gf
en
ce
d
gr
an
th
el
d
ag
ai
ns
to
th
er
pr
es
su
re
s

20
S
ch
o
o
lO
rg
an
is
at
io
n
&
C
ap
it
al
P
la
n
n
in
g

£2
7k
pr
es
su
re
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
re
la
tin
g
to
P
F
Is
ho
rt
fa
ll
on
bu
dg
et
bu
ild
10
/1
1l
in
ke
d
to
P
F
Ir
es
er
ve

21
IS
B
F
u
n
d
ed
B
y
D
S
G
/Y
P
L
A

£1
14
k
In
di
vi
du
al
S
ch
oo
lB
ud
ge
t–
B
ud
ge
tB
ui
ld
er
ro
r
in
th
e
in
fla
tio
n
fig
ur
e
ap
pl
ie
d
to
In
co
m
e/
E
xp
en
d.

22
C
en
tr
al
D
S
G
/Y
P
L
A

£1
22
k
C
en
tr
al
D
S
G
B
ud
ge
t–
B
ud
ge
tB
ui
ld
er
ro
r
in
th
e
in
fla
tio
n
fa
ct
or
ap
pl
ie
d
to
In
co
m
e/
E
xp
en
d.

W
or
k
is
on
go
in
g
to
fin
al
is
e
th
e
pr
es
su
re
s
in
O
ut
of
C
ou
nt
y
P
la
ce
m
en
ts
an
d
S
pe
ci
al
R
ec
ou
pm
en
t,
an
d
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g.

£1
40
k
pr
es
su
re
un
ac
hi
ev
ab
le
in
co
m
e
ta
rg
et
in
ba
se
bu
dg
et
bu
ild
.
C
ov
er
ed
in
ye
ar
by
he
ld
va
ca
nc
ie
s

£1
,2
90
k
N
ee
ds
le
d
bu
dg
et
to
m
ee
ts
ta
tu
to
ry
ob
lig
at
io
n
-
1.
3M

so
ci
al
ca
re
pr
es
su
re
re
la
tin
g
to
an
in
cr
ea
se
in
ch
ild
re
n
re
fe
rr
al
s
as
a
re
su
lt
of
B
ab
y
P
.
T
hi
s
ha
s
be
en
fla
gg
ed
in
th
e
m
on
th
ly
m
on
ito
rin
g
re
po
rt
s
si
nc
e
th
e
st
ar
to
ft
he
fin
an
ci
al
ye
ar
.

£3
0k
(o
ut
of
£2
10
k)
In
co
m
e
ta
rg
et
se
tt
oo
hi
gh
in
ba
se
bu
dg
et
bu
ild
10
/1
1
an
d
un
ac
hi
ev
ab
le
fr
om

S
LA
w
ith
B
ed
fo
rd

N
o
pr
es
su
re
or
sa
vi
ng
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
In
ye
ar
sa
vi
ng
s
10
/1
1
as
a
re
su
lt
of
fr
ee
zi
ng
di
sc
re
tio
na
ry
sp
en
d
an
d
he
ld
va
ca
nc
ie
s.

T
ak
e
ou
ta
ny
pr
es
su
re
s
th
at
ar
e
be
in
g

m
an
ag
ed
in
ye
ar
,o
r
w
he
re
ac
tio
n
is
be
in
g

ta
ke
n
to
ad
dr
es
s
th
e
ov
er
sp
en
d,
so
th
at

on
ly
th
e
pr
es
su
re
th
at
ne
ed
to
be
ta
ke
n

fo
rw
ar
d
ar
e
re
m
ai
ni
ng
.S
im
ila
rly
re
m
ov
e

an
y
sa
vi
ng
s
th
at
w
ill
no
tb
e
ca
rr
ie
d
fo
rw
ar
d

in
to
ne
xt

T
he
se
ite
m
s
w
ill
ne
ed
to
in
cl
ud
e
an
y
F
Y
E

of
pa
rt
ye
ar
pr
es
su
re
s
id
en
tif
ie
d
in
20
10
/1
1.

T
he
se
w
ill
be
un
bu
dg
et
ed

pr
es
su
re
s/
sa
vi
ng
s
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
in
to

20
11
/1
2
an
d
as
su
ch
th
ey
w
ill
be

ch
al
le
ng
ed
to
en
su
re
th
at
on
ly
tr
ul
y
va
lid

ite
m
s
ar
e
id
en
tif
ie
d.

£2
8k
sa
vi
ng
s
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d

£3
7k
sa
vi
ng
s
to
ta
ke
fo
rw
ar
d
-
ba
se
bu
dg
et
bu
ild
to
of
fe
r
up
as
sa
vi
ng
s,
bu
dg
et
no
tr
eq
ui
re
d

£4
62
k
pr
es
su
re
m
ad
e
up
of
£2
00
k
ef
fic
ie
nc
y
bu
ilt
in
to
10
/1
1
bu
dg
et
on
R
es
id
en
tia
lH
om
e
pa
ym
en
ts
no
ta
ch
ie
ve
d
du
e
to
hi
gh
ne
ed
al
on
gs
id
e
£2
60
k
in
co
m
e
as
su
m
pt
io
n
fr
om

sc
ho
ol
s
be
in
g
a
ba
se
bu
dg
et
bu
ild
er
ro
r

T
he
se
ar
e
th
e
fu
tu
re
ye
ar
bu
dg
et
ed

ite
m
s
id
en
tif
ie
d
in
th
e
20
10
/1
1
M
T
F
P

as
de
ta
ile
d
in
th
e
ap
pe
nd
ic
es
ta
ke
n

to
C
ou
nc
il
in
F
eb
ru
ar
y
20
10
.

T
hi
s
w
ill
be
th
e
"L
at
es
tB
ud
ge
t"
,p
lu
s
th
e
ne
w
ly

id
en
tif
ie
d
pr
es
su
re
s/
sa
vi
ng
s
to
ca
rr
y
fo
rw
ar
d,

pl
us
th
e
20
11
/1
2
F
Y
E
id
en
tif
ie
d
in
th
e
20
10
/1
1

M
T
F
P
.
A
s
su
ch
th
e
re
su
lt
w
ou
ld
be
th
e
bu
dg
et

po
si
tio
n
re
qu
ire
d
if
ev
er
yt
hi
ng
w
as
to
st
ay
ed
th
e

sa
m
e
ne
xt
ye
ar
.

P
os
iti
on
as
at
30
S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
10
,w
ill
re
co
nc
ile

ba
ck
to
bu
dg
et
de
ci
si
on
fig
ur
e
of
£1
77
.0
28
m
.
It

w
ill
in
cl
ud
e
an
y
p
er
m
an
en
t
vi
re
m
en
ts
or

te
ch
ni
ca
la
dj
us
tm
en
ts
th
at
ha
ve
be
en
ap
pr
ov
ed

in
ye
ar
.

T
o
re
co
nc
ile
ba
ck
to
al
lp
re
ss
ur
es
id
en
tif
ie
d

in
th
e
bu
dg
et
m
on
ito
rin
g
re
po
rt
s.
T
hi
s
w
ill
be

th
e
va
ri
an
ce

to
th
e
"L
at
es
tB
ud
ge
t"
on
ly
.

P
O
P
U
L
A
T
E
D
F
R
O
M
S
A
P
-
B
U
D
G
E
T

V
E
R
S
IO
N
1
P
L
U
S
A
P
R
T
O
S
E
P
P
E
R
M
A
N
E
N
T

V
IR
E
M
E
N
T
S

P
O
P
U
L
A
T
E
D
F
R
O
M
S
A
P
-
S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R

F
O
R
E
C
A
S
T
L
E
S
S
B
U
D
G
E
T
B
A
S
E
IN

C
O
L
U
M
N
S
A
,B
,C
.

M
A
N
U
A
L
L
Y
A
D
JU
S
T
E
D
T
H
R
O
U
G
H

C
O
N
S
U
L
T
A
T
IO
N
W
IT
H
D
IR
E
C
T
O
R
A
T
E

B
U
D
G
E
T
M
A
N
A
G
E
R
S
&
F
IN
A
N
C
E

C
A
L
C
U
L
A
T
E
D
F
IE
L
D

M
A
N
U
A
L
IN
P
U
T
P
IC
K
E
D
U
P

F
R
O
M
10
/1
1
C
O
U
N
C
IL

A
P
P
E
N
D
IC
E
S

P
R
O
F
IT
C
E
N
T
R
E
D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N

C
A
L
C
U
L
A
T
E
D
F
IE
L
D

Agenda Item 10
Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B

B
as
e
B
u
d
g
et
R
ev
ie
w
S
ta
n
d
st
ill
B
u
d
g
et
20
11
/1
2
-
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n

P
ay
ro
ll
R
el
at
ed

R
u
n
n
in
g
C
o
st
s

T
O
T
A
L

E
X
P
E
N
D
IT
U
R
E

B
U
D
G
E
T

S
al
es
,F
ee
s
an
d

C
h
ar
g
es
B
u
d
g
et

G
ra
n
ts
&

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

O
th
er
in
co
m
e

B
u
d
g
et

T
O
T
A
L
IN
C
O
M
E

B
U
D
G
E
T

20
11
/1
2

S
T
A
N
D
S
T
IL
L

B
U
D
G
E
T

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

£s
£s

D
ire
ct
or
s
C
os
tC
en
tr
e
T
ot
al

25
0,
62
4

10
4,
27
8

35
4,
90
2

-
17
0,
17
3

-
-

17
0,
17
3

-
18
4,
72
9

D
ir
ec
to
r
o
f
C
h
ild
re
n
S
er
vi
ce
s
T
o
ta
l

25
0,
62
4

10
4,
27
8

35
4,
90
2

-
17
0,
17
3

-
-

17
0,
17
3

-
18
4,
72
9

A
D
-
C
S
S
T
ot
al

80
5,
07
2

6,
37
7,
16
0

7,
18
2,
23
2

-
1,
18
5,
68
1

-
37
,3
71

-
1,
22
3,
05
2

-
5,
95
9,
18
0

S
E
N
&
In
cl
us
io
n
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

1,
44
7,
80
0

7,
48
2,
58
2

8,
93
0,
38
2

2,
55
4,
40
5

-
4,
43
8,
94
8

-
-

6,
99
3,
35
3

-
1,
93
7,
03
0

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
&
C
hi
ld
re
n
in
C
ar
e
T
ot
al

3,
13
8,
80
2

3,
62
5,
37
6

6,
76
4,
17
8

-
1,
49
9,
55
6

-
66
,8
30

-
1,
56
6,
38
6

-
5,
19
7,
79
2

C
hi
ld
re
n
w
ith
D
is
ab
ili
tie
s
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
T
ot
al

2,
35
7,
73
9

2,
09
3,
35
8

4,
45
1,
09
7

68
,9
97

-
97
9,
29
7

-
0

1,
04
8,
29
4

-
3,
40
2,
80
3

Q
ua
lit
y
A
ss
ur
an
ce
C
R
S
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

73
1,
97
9

85
,5
71

81
7,
55
0

-
-

53
,0
00

-
53
,0
00

-
76
4,
55
0

F
os
te
rin
g
&
A
do
pt
io
n
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

2,
02
7,
13
0

3,
25
0,
52
9

5,
27
7,
65
9

42
,4
25

-
31
,8
28

-
2,
68
4,
00
3

-
2,
75
8,
25
6

-
2,
51
9,
40
3

Lo
ca
lS
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
B
oa
rd
T
ot
al

16
0,
06
1

88
,6
68

24
8,
72
9

10
9,
15
2

-
18
,5
56

-
55
,0
00

-
18
2,
70
8

-
66
,0
21

In
te
gr
at
ed
Y
ou
th
S
up
po
rt
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

2,
63
8,
54
0

54
8,
99
7

3,
18
7,
53
7

6,
90
6

-
1,
40
7,
12
2

-
-

1,
41
4,
02
8

-
1,
77
3,
50
9

In
te
gr
at
ed
P
ro
ce
ss
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

71
2,
53
2

85
6,
70
1

1,
56
9,
23
3

-
43
5,
06
0

-
-

43
5,
06
0

-
1,
13
4,
17
3

E
ar
ly
In
te
rv
en
tio
n
/P
re
ve
nt
io
n
S
er
v
M
an
T
ot
al

1,
16
7,
94
0

8,
12
6,
05
6

9,
29
3,
99
6

-
9,
00
0,
77
8

-
25
,3
14

-
9,
02
6,
09
2

-
26
7,
90
4

C
h
ild
re
n
s
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
p
er
at
io
n
s
T
o
ta
l

15
,1
87
,5
96

32
,5
34
,9
98

47
,7
22
,5
93

2,
78
1,
88
5

-
18
,9
96
,8
26

-
2,
92
1,
51
8

-
24
,7
00
,2
28

-
23
,0
22
,3
65

A
D
-
Le
ar
ni
ng
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g
T
ot
al

64
2,
90
5

15
2,
95
5

79
5,
86
0

-
14
5,
24
8

-
-

14
5,
24
8

-
65
0,
61
2

P
ol
ic
y
&
S
tr
at
eg
y
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
er
T
ot
al

18
5,
46
3

10
,4
70

19
5,
93
3

-
-

-
-

19
5,
93
3

Jo
in
tS
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m
is
si
on
S
er
vi
ce
M
an
ag
T
ot
al

31
2,
64
9

49
,6
17

36
2,
26
6

17
7

-
30
0

-
-

47
8

-
36
1,
78
8

JS
C
S
T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
T
ot
al

17
8,
59
1

8,
73
4,
30
8

8,
91
2,
89
9

25
7,
96
1

-
-

-
25
7,
96
1

-
8,
65
4,
93
8

H
ea
d
of
14
-1
9
C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g
&
S
ki
lls
T
ot
al

13
0,
06
4

16
,9
70

14
7,
03
4

-
14
7,
03
4

-
-

14
7,
03
4

-
-

S
ch
oo
lS
up
po
rt
S
er
vi
ce
T
ot
al

1,
21
9,
84
8

10
,1
87
,5
97

11
,4
07
,4
45

34
,7
46

-
11
,0
95
,3
11

-
-

11
,1
30
,0
57

-
27
7,
38
8

O
th
er
S
ch
oo
lB
ud
ge
ts
T
ot
al

40
,1
26

36
6,
57
6

40
6,
70
2

23
2,
98
2

-
17
3,
72
1

-
-

40
6,
70
3

-
0

-
H
ea
d
O
fP
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
&
W
or
kf
or
ce
D
ev
T
ot
al

73
7,
94
3

1,
90
0,
43
7

2,
63
8,
38
0

-
1,
79
8,
63
1

-
-

1,
79
8,
63
1

-
83
9,
74
8

S
ch
oo
lI
m
pr
ov
em
en
tT
ot
al

2,
02
3,
70
0

1,
67
5,
22
7

3,
69
8,
92
6

9,
85
4

-
2,
13
4,
54
7

-
-

2,
14
4,
40
1

-
1,
55
4,
52
6

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
F
un
d
T
ot
al

11
6,
05
0

13
,9
22
,6
86

14
,0
38
,7
36

-
14
,0
38
,7
36

-
-

14
,0
38
,7
36

-
-

S
ch
oo
ls
IC
T
T
ot
al

17
8,
41
3

19
1,
84
9

37
0,
26
2

-
65
,2
49

-
0

-
65
,2
49

-
30
5,
01
3

M
us
ic
S
er
vi
ce
T
ot
al

2,
16
5,
27
7

27
9,
51
0

2,
44
4,
78
7

1,
04
1,
10
2

-
1,
13
1,
87
0

-
-

2,
17
2,
97
1

-
27
1,
81
5

S
ch
oo
lO
rg
an
is
at
io
n
&
C
ap
ita
lP
la
nn
in
g
T
ot
al

40
2,
61
4

3,
96
9,
34
6

4,
37
1,
96
0

1,
18
5,
44
5

-
1,
88
6,
31
4

-
-

3,
07
1,
75
9

-
1,
30
0,
20
1

L
ea
rn
in
g
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
T
o
ta
l

8,
33
3,
64
1

41
,4
57
,5
48

49
,7
91
,1
89

2,
76
2,
26
8

-
32
,6
16
,9
60

-
0

-
35
,3
79
,2
29

-
14
,4
11
,9
60

N
u
rs
er
y
S
ch
o
o
ls
T
o
ta
l

-
-

-
-

1,
42
8,
44
8

-
1,
42
8,
44
8

1,
42
8,
44
8

L
o
w
er
S
ch
o
o
ls
T
o
ta
l

-
-

-
-

49
,9
82
,7
80

-
49
,9
82
,7
80

49
,9
82
,7
80

M
id
d
le
S
ch
o
o
ls
T
o
ta
l

-
-

-
-

38
,9
75
,5
21

-
38
,9
75
,5
21

38
,9
75
,5
21

U
p
p
er
S
ch
o
o
ls
T
o
ta
l

-
-

-
-

49
,9
52
,8
56

-
49
,9
52
,8
56

49
,9
52
,8
56

S
p
ec
ia
lS
ch
o
o
ls
T
o
ta
l

-
-

-
-

8,
15
3,
41
7

-
8,
15
3,
41
7

8,
15
3,
41
7

IS
B
F
u
n
d
ed
B
y
D
S
G
/Y
P
L
A
T
o
ta
l

-
-

-
-

14
8,
49
3,
02
2

-
-

14
8,
49
3,
02
2

-
14
8,
49
3,
02
2

-
C
en
tr
al
D
S
G
/S
ch
o
o
lC
o
n
ti
n
g
en
cy

-
77
7,
65
7

77
7,
65
7

-
2,
57
9,
57
0

-
-

2,
57
9,
57
0

-
1,
80
1,
91
4

-
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s
T
o
ta
l

23
,7
71
,8
61

74
,8
74
,4
80

98
,6
46
,3
41

5,
54
4,
15
3

-
54
,3
63
,5
29

-
2,
92
1,
51
8

-
62
,8
29
,2
00

-
35
,8
17
,1
41

S
:\C
or
po
ra
te
R
es
ou
rc
es
\L
eg
al
an
d
D
em
oc
ra
tic
\P
riv
at
e\
C
om
m
itt
ee
\C
hi
ld
re
ns
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
ve
rv
ie
w
an
d
S
cr
ut
in
y
C
om
m
itt
ee
\0
1
A
pr
il
20
10
to
M
ar
ch
20
11
\0
9
21
.1
2.
10
\B
ud
ge
tB
ui
ld
an
d
S
av
in
gs
P
ro
po
sa
ls
A
pp
B

Agenda Item 10
Page 11



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B

C
h
ild
re
n
s'
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
p
er
at
io
n
s

In
co
rp
or
at
es
th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
de
pa
rt
m
en
ts
:-

S
p
ec
ia
lis
t
S
er
vi
ce
s

In
te
g
ra
te
d
S
er
vi
ce
s

L
ea
rn
in
g
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

T
hi
s
pa
rt
of
se
rv
ic
es
br
in
g
to
ge
th
er
ed
uc
at
io
n
an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re
pr
of
es
si
on
al
s
to
pr
ov
id
e
se
rv
ic
es
th
at
su
pp
or
tc
hi
ld
re
n
in
ne
ed
,c
hi
ld
re
n
in
ne
ed
of
pr
ot
ec
tio
n,
ch
ild
re
n
in
pu
bl
ic
ca
re
an
d
ch
ild
re
n

w
ith
di
sa
bi
lit
ie
s
or
sp
ec
ia
le
du
ca
tio
na
ln
ee
ds
.C
hi
ld
re
n
re
fe
rr
ed
to
sp
ec
ia
lis
ts
er
vi
ce
s
w
ill
,i
n
th
e
m
ai
n,
be
th
os
e
w
ith
co
m
pl
ex
ne
ed
s
re
qu
iri
ng
S
pe
ci
al
is
ti
nt
er
ve
nt
io
n
or
ta
rg
et
ed

pr
ev
en
ta
tiv
e
se
rv
ic
es
.

T
hi
s
S
er
vi
ce
w
ill
br
in
g
to
ge
th
er
a
ra
ng
e
of
pr
of
es
si
on
al
s
fr
om

a
va
rie
ty
of
di
sc
ip
lin
es
to
de
liv
er
ea
rly
in
te
rv
en
tio
n
&
pr
ev
en
tio
n
an
d
ta
rg
et
ed
yo
ut
h
se
rv
ic
es
to
ch
ild
re
n,
yo
un
g
pe
op
le
an
d
fa
m
ili
es

in
C
en
tr
al
B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
.
It
in
cl
ud
es
a
di
ve
rs
e
ra
ng
e
of
se
rv
ic
es
th
at
en
su
re
s
ac
ce
ss
to
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s
C
en
tr
e
se
rv
ic
es
,s
up
po
rt
s
P
riv
at
e,
V
ol
un
ta
ry
an
d
In
de
pe
nd
en
t(
P
V
I)
pr
ov
id
er
s
of
fr
ee
nu
rs
er
y

ed
uc
at
io
n,
su
pp
or
ts
sc
ho
ol
s
to
m
ee
ta
ll
th
e
el
em
en
ts
of
th
e
co
re
of
fe
r
en
tit
le
m
en
to
fE
xt
en
de
d
S
er
vi
ce
s
an
d
pr
ov
id
es
co
re
tr
ai
ni
ng
,c
on
tin
ua
lp
ro
fe
ss
io
na
ld
ev
el
op
m
en
tt
o
C
en
tr
al
B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
’s

ch
ild
re
n’
s
w
or
kf
or
ce
.

P
ol
ic
y,
P
la
nn
in
g
an
d
C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g
su
pp
or
ts
th
e
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s
T
ru
st
pl
an
ni
ng
an
d
de
ci
si
on
m
ak
in
g
st
ru
ct
ur
es
an
d
is
re
sp
on
si
bl
e
fo
r
th
e
de
ve
lo
pm
en
to
ft
he
C
hi
ld
re
n
&
Y
ou
ng
P
eo
pl
e’
s
P
la
n.
It

le
ad
s
on
de
ve
lo
pi
ng
an
d
im
pl
em
en
tin
g
th
e
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n
st
ra
te
gy
.
T
he
te
am

ha
s
a
cr
os
s-
D
ire
ct
or
at
e
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
y
fo
r
st
ra
te
gi
c
co
m
m
is
si
on
in
g
an
d
al
so
co
m
m
is
si
on
s
se
rv
ic
es
to

su
pp
or
tc
hi
ld
re
n
an
d
fa
m
ili
es
in
ne
ed
on
be
ha
lf
of
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s
S
pe
ci
al
is
tS
er
vi
ce
s.
T
he
te
am

su
pp
or
ts
th
e
de
ve
lo
pm
en
ta
nd
im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n
of
al
lc
hi
ld
re
n’
s
se
rv
ic
es
st
ra
te
gi
es
,p
ol
ic
ie
s
an
d

pr
oc
ed
ur
es
an
d
su
pp
or
ts
th
e
de
m
oc
ra
tic
pr
oc
es
s.
It
is
al
so
re
sp
on
si
bl
e
fo
r
th
e
pr
ov
is
io
n
of
H
om
e
to
S
ch
oo
lT
ra
ns
po
rt
.

T
he
Le
ar
ni
ng
an
d
S
ch
oo
lS
up
po
rt
se
ct
io
n
of
th
e
C
hi
ld
re
n,
F
am
ili
es
an
d
Le
ar
ni
ng
D
ire
ct
or
at
e
ha
s
a
ke
y
ro
le
to
pl
ay
in
en
su
rin
g
th
at
ch
ild
re
n
ac
hi
ev
e
th
ei
r
tr
ue
po
te
nt
ia
la
nd
ha
ve
th
e
be
st

po
ss
ib
le
st
ar
ti
n
lif
e.
T
he
se
rv
ic
es
w
ith
in
th
is
ar
ea
w
or
k
cl
os
el
y
w
ith
sc
ho
ol
s
pr
ov
id
in
g
su
pp
or
ta
nd
ch
al
le
ng
e
to
en
su
re
th
e
de
liv
er
y
of
qu
al
ity
ed
uc
at
io
na
lp
ro
vi
si
on
.S
ch
oo
ls
ar
e
at
th
e
he
ar
to
f

ou
r
pl
an
ni
ng
an
d
se
rv
ic
e
de
liv
er
y
an
d
cr
ea
tin
g
a
jo
in
ts
en
se
of
hi
gh
ex
pe
ct
at
io
n
of
hi
gh
ac
hi
ev
em
en
t.
W
e
w
an
ts
ch
oo
ls
se
rv
in
g
ea
ch
co
m
m
un
ity
to
w
or
k
to
ge
th
er
in
th
e
cl
os
es
tp
os
si
bl
e
w
ay
an
d

to
be
th
e
ba
se
fo
r
de
liv
er
in
g
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of
se
rv
ic
es
to
th
ei
r
co
m
m
un
iti
es
.

S
:\C
or
po
ra
te
R
es
ou
rc
es
\L
eg
al
an
d
D
em
oc
ra
tic
\P
riv
at
e\
C
om
m
itt
ee
\C
hi
ld
re
ns
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
ve
rv
ie
w
an
d
S
cr
ut
in
y
C
om
m
itt
ee
\0
1
A
pr
il
20
10
to
M
ar
ch
20
11
\0
9
21
.1
2.
10
\B
ud
ge
tB
ui
ld
an
d
S
av
in
gs
P
ro
po
sa
ls
A
pp
B

Agenda Item 10
Page 12



 
 
Meeting: Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 21 December 2010  

Subject: Budget Management Report Quarter ended 30 September 
2010 

Report of: Cllr Anita Lewis, Portfolio Holder for Children Services 

Summary: The report sets out the projected full year forecast as at 30 September 
2010 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Edwina Grant, Director of  Children Services 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
Sound financial management contributes to the delivery of the Council’s value for 
money and enables the Council to successfully deliver priorities. 
 
Financial: 

The financial implications are set out in the report. 
 
Legal: 

None 
 
Risk Management: 

The key revenue risks of bringing spending in line with the approved budget is the 
predicted increase in referrals in Children’s Social Care accompanying a demand for 
expensive placements during the year which can vary widely and are needs led. 
Appropriate management actions are being taken to mitigate against the projected 
overspend which include freezing discretionary spend, challenging high cost 
placements and bringing forward staff reorganisation to reduce costs. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

Any staffing reductions as a result of compensatory efficiencies or Area Based Grant 
reductions will be carried out in accordance with the Council’s Managing Change 
Policy and in consultation with the Trades Unions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 13



Equalities/Human Rights: 

Equality Impact Assessments were undertaken prior to the allocation of the 2010/11 
budgets and each Directorate was advised of significant equality implications relating to 
their budget proposals. Many of the pressures outlined in this report are in relation to 
those needs led services which support the most vulnerable children in our 
communities. 
 
Community Safety: 

Any savings of efficiency proposals and reduction in Area Based Grant that remove or 
change the level of service provided may have an impact on the community safety 
priorities and potentially result in an increase in crime, anti social behaviour, fear of 
crime and public confidence. 
 
Sustainability: 

None 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

that the  
 
 (a) current projected full year forecast of £1.40M overspend is noted 

 
 (b) Committee considers any issues from this report that could form part 

of their work programme 
 

 
Introduction 
 
1. 
 

The report sets out the financial position to the end of September 2010 and the 
latest forecast position.  

Executive Summary Revenue 

2. 
 
 
 
 
 

There are pressures relating to the number of children requiring social care 
intervention and in out of authority placements for children with special 
educational needs. Savings in the PRU remain at risk and are subject to the on-
going re-commissioning process. This process will take account of planned 
savings and will also seek to improve the quality of service delivery. 

3. The ongoing pressures in Safeguarding and Children in Care relating to the 
increased numbers amount to circa £1M. This is a budget that is needs led and 
on-going modelling is taking place to provide better forecasting. 

4. Management action continues to be taken to address overspend in the special 
educational needs budgets. This includes freezing discretionary spend and 
challenging high cost pupil placements. At their September meeting the School 
Forum agreed to contribute £0.35M in 2010/11 from the Special Educational 
Needs Contingency budget to fund the pressure on out of authority placements. 

Agenda Item 12
Page 14



5. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Children’s Services have reduced budgets by £1.172M in line with the Coalition 
Government reductions and the current forecasts position is these in year cuts will 
be achieved.  In those instances where schools received funding from the 
reduced ABG grants - schools have now been invoiced the 24%, being the pro 
rata cut, to enable recovery of the funds and "sharing of pain". Subject to all the 
staffing proposals in the 90 day consultation Children’s Services will be able to 
absorb most of  the full year effect but this will not be confirmed until the 
consultation ends on the 13 December. 

6. The Government has indicated that it may review and reduce the Asylum Seekers 
Grant.  At the time of writing notification is awaited. The estimated risk is in the 
order of £280k. 

7. In year savings will be achieved in the Music Service against the Music Standards 
Fund (MSF).  The future of this fund is subject to a national review “The Henley 
Review” which closed its call for evidence at the end of October 2010. The date of 
the outcome is not known. Management actions are ongoing to reshape the future 
of the Music Service and consultation on some posts at risk is on-going as the 
service will need to be full cost recovery in advance of 2013. 

8. The planned children’s services staffing reorganisation is subject to 90 day 
consultation, ending on 13th December 2010 although there is a considerable lead 
time on these savings. 

9. Budget pressures are on going for PFI and this relates to a base budget build 
shortfall. 

10. The full year forecast position has improved by £1M since the last quarter and is 
now forecast at £1.40M over budget.   

11. The actual to date overspend (excluding schools) is £409k which is mainly 
accounted for by the freezing of discretionary spend. 

12. Children’s Services Operations 

The key areas contributing to this overspend within the Children’s Services 
Operations area of £1.90M: 

• The number of children requiring social care intervention 

• Out of county placements for children with special educational needs. 

The budget build is currently being reviewed in the following areas to inform 
budget pressures; 

• Special Educational Needs – Recoupment and Out of County Placements 

• Children with Disabilities 

• Safeguarding and Children in Care (excluding Asylum) 

• Quality Assurance 

• Asylum Seekers 

These are needs led budgets and patterns of spend will not be equally spread 
throughout the year.  However, all Heads of Services are undertaking a budget 
review exercise, with support from financial services to ensure as much 
consistency and rigour in monitoring and accuracy of forecasting as possible. 

Agenda Item 12
Page 15



13. Learning and Strategic Commissioning 

The key areas contributing to the under spend within Learning and Strategic 
Commissioning area of £0.40M are: 

• Freezing of discretionary spend 

• Held vacancies 

Offsetting overspends relating to: 

• Difficult to achieve efficiencies for the Pupil Referral Unit and Music Service 
both of which are being re-commissioned 

• PFI shortfall 

The budget build is currently being reviewed in the following areas to inform 
budget pressures; 

• School Improvement 

• Partnerships and Workforce Development 

• Student Awards and Post 16 Learner Support  

• School Organisation and Capital Planning 

 

14. Table A below shows a summary revenue position, analysed by Assistant Director 
and the full year variance to budget. A more detailed table is shown at Appendix 
A.  Appendix A1 reflects the change in forecast from Quarter One. 

 

15. Table A Revenue Position Summary 

AD Budget Full Year 
Forecast 

(after Use of 
Reserves) 

Variance 
to 

Forecast 

Management 
Actions 

 £’000 £’000 £’000  

AD -CSO 19,892 21,788 1,896 Para 16-24 

AD – L & SC 5,633 5,234 (399) Para 25-33 

Director CS 185 185 0  

Transport 8,655 8,558 (97) Appendix A 

Total (excluding 
- unallocated 
DSG/YPLA & 
Schools) 

34,365 35,765 1,400  

 
 
16. The full year projected forecast for Children Services Operations is £1.90M over 

budget. This is an increase on the 1st quarter by £0.39M mainly due to the 
increased workforce in Safeguarding and Children in care, offsetting an improved 
position for SEN and inclusion following the contribution from SEN Contingency. 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 16



17. The variance to date of £0.86M overspend is mainly accounted for by the trend of 
spend associated with Education funding.  The activity for this budget normally 
follows the school academic year and therefore activity dips during the month of 
August. 

The main areas making up for the forecast variance overspend at year end are 
as follows: 

18. Children’s Social Care 
 

High demand for social care services to safeguard children and increased 
number of looked after children requiring agency placements are currently 
causing a £1.42M projected overspend (an increase from Quarter One of 
£1.14M).  This assumes that the special circumstances grant claim of £0.28M in 
respect of unaccompanied asylum seeking children is settled by the Home 
Office, this constitutes a risk with the significant possibility of non payment.  
Overall case numbers remain high, and, although there are some indications of 
stabilisation the pressure on this budget may increase further as the year goes 
on.  
 

19. Children with Special Educational Needs  
 

Higher than budgeted numbers of pupils with assessed and statemented special 
needs are being placed in out of authority specialist residential schools and are 
causing significant pressure on the budget, leading to a projected overspend of 
£0.51M.  This was a budget where projections last year indicated that some 
savings could be made.  This has proved not to 
be the case.  The projected overspend is also a consequence of a number of 
pupils moving into the area for whom the authority has had to assume 
responsibility.   Reduced capacity at Oak Bank School as a result of not being 
able to proceed with the planned capital programme has also had an impact. 
Discussions are ongoing with Bedford Borough about the impact of recharges 
and checks will occur that these charges can be validated.  
 

20. Placement recoupment for children with special needs placed in other 
authorities 
 

A net overspend of £0.18M is currently being projected for Special schools and 
placement recoupment due to more Central Bedfordshire pupils with Special 
Needs are  being educated in other authorities, principally Bedford Borough, 
than those from other authorities being educated in Central Bedfordshire.  This 
is due to a mismatch of the needs of the children and our internal capacity in 
Central Bedfordshire. There is a risk that this will increase if the recoupment 
rates cannot be agreed with Bedford Borough. 
 

The School Forum agreed at their September meeting to contribute £0.35M 
from the Special Educational Contingency budget to Out of County placements.  
Although this is a base budget requirement dialogue occurs with the School 
Forum annually. 
 

21. Early Years and Sensory Impairment 
 

There is a risk that an overspend may occur as the recharge rates are yet to be 
agreed with Bedford Borough.  Costs for the last quarter of 09-10 and the first 
two quarters of 10-11 are in dispute. 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 17



22. Assessment and Monitoring 
 
Full year forecast is £0.1Mm under spend.  This is as a result of held vacancy 
savings during the year subject to directorate reorganisation. 
 

23. Quality Assurance 
 
Agency staff covering maternity and sickness has resulted in a £0.08M over 
spend. 
 

24. Youth Service 
 
Full year forecast is £0.11M underspend.  This is as a result of freezing 
discretionary spend. 
 

25. The full year projected forecast for Learning and Strategic Commissioning is 
£0.40M underspend. This is a reduction on the Quarter One forecast by £1.4M 
mainly due to the freezing of discretionary spend, savings being achieved on the 
Music Service efficiency and the redundancy payments relating to the I-Tech SLA 
transferring to the Council's Redundancy Reserve.  

 
26. The variance to date of £0.35M under spend is largely attributable to the timing of 

spend in a school year (minimal spend in school holidays) and the period relating 
to the freezing of discretionary spend.  

The main areas making up for the forecast variance overspend at year end are 
as follows: 
 

27. AD Learning and Strategic Commissioning 

Full year forecast is £0.06M underspend.  This is as a result of held vacancy 
savings during the year subject to directorate reorganisation. 

 

28. Policy & Strategy 
 
Full year forecast is £0.07M underspend. This is mainly as a result of held 
vacancy savings during the year subject to directorate reorganisation.  
 

29. Strategic Commissioning 
 
Full year forecast is £0.03M underspend. This is mainly as a result of held 
vacancy savings during the year subject to directorate reorganisation.  
 

30. School Support Service 
 
Full year forecast is £0.24M overspend due to the difficult to achieve efficiency 
savings budgeted within the PRU (£0.247M). The Director is currently working 
with Bedford Borough who host the SLA to ascertain confirmation of 2009/10 
charges  which are  subject to dispute and  to agree 2010/11 charges which had 
been the subject of agreed , but yet unconfirmed, reductions .  
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 18



31. Partnership and Workforce Development 
 
Full year forecast is £0.13M underspend mainly due to the freezing of 
discretionary spend. 
 

32. School Improvement 
 
Full year forecast is £0.35M underspend. These savings will be necessary to 
balance efficiencies that are at risk. This is mainly as a result of held vacancy 
savings during the year subject to directorate reorganisation and the freezing of 
discretionary spend.  
 
 

33. School Organisation & Capital Planning 
 
Full year forecast is £0.06M over budget. This is mainly made up of the 
following: 
 
• £0.04M of the forecast overspend relates to an unpaid invoice for 2008/09 

schools condition survey for which there is no budget provision.  
 

• £0.03M due to a revenue budget shortfall in respect of the PFI scheme 
which has occurred due to the omission of additional charges during the 
budget build/preparation for 2010/11. This ongoing budget pressure is 
expected to be met by corporate reserves as this relates to the PFI scheme 
which was a legacy scheme from the previous authority.   

 
 

34. Director of Children Services 

 The full year projected forecast for the Director is expected to be on budget, 
there are no significant issues to report. 
 

35. Transport 
 
The full year projected forecast for Transport is £0.10M underspend.  A more 
detailed breakdown by service is shown in Appendix A. 
 

36. Schools 
 

 The Revenue and Capital Reserves brought forward to 2010/11 for Central 
Bedfordshire Schools are £7.89M and £1.14M, respectively.  This does not 
include the Devolved Formula Capital balance of £4.89M. 
 

37. There are 14 schools with an approved licensed deficit, with a total value of 
£0.55M.  There are a further 8 schools with which the finance team are currently 
working. Schools are being requested to submit a revised budget for 2010/11 
during the Autumn term, after the pupil census date.   Schools are also required 
by the Scheme for Financing Schools to submit a forecast out-turn during 
December. It is anticipated that the applications for License Deficits will rise in the 
Autumn term. 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 19



38. There is a shortfall between the budget model and the expected / actual 
Dedicated School Grant (DSG) income of approximately £0.31M. (£0.11m – 
Individual Schools Budget, £0.20m – Central Expenditure). This has arisen due 
to an incorrect budget build. The shortfall will be funded through the School 
Specific Contingency. 
 

Executive Summary Capital 
 

39. The revised 2010/11 budget is £3.49M and the full year forecast position is 
£3.52M. 

Table B below shows the overall forecast capital position based on the profile of 
works to be carried out. A more detailed table, by scheme is shown at Appendix 
B.   

40. Table B Capital Position Summary     

AD Budget Full Year 
Forecast  

Variance to 
Forecast 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Learning & Strategic 
Commissioning 

3.361 3,394     33 

Children’s Services 
Operations 

  131 131 0 

Net      3,492 3,525       33 

    
 

41. 
 
 
 

 
 

The variance to date of £0.785M derives principally from a delayed start of 3 block 
schemes, namely Access Initiative, Asbestos Health & Safety and NDS 
Modernisation   It is expected that these schemes will still be completed within 
2010/11. 

 

Key Management Actions 

42. 
 
 

A gradual reduction of discretionary services remains a key driver within the 
directorate in order to achieve the targeted level of efficiencies.   

43. On needs led budgets, appropriate management actions are being taken 
including freezing any discretionary spend within that budget envelope, 
challenging high cost placements on a pupil by pupil basis and bringing forward 
staff reorganisation to reduce costs. 

Discussions are on-going with the Headteacher and Governors of Oak Bank 
regarding requests made by the Council for the admission of pupils where it may 
be possible to reduce the pressure on the out of authority residential budget. 

The review of special schools is being brought forward. 

44. Close monitoring of the efficiency tracker is being undertaken to ensure efficiency 
targets are met and where these are at risk compensatory savings are planned. 

Agenda Item 12
Page 20



45. The Music Service re-structure proposals are currently subject to statutory 
consultation. However, the required HR processes mean that savings will not be 
made before January 2011 when this will be reflected in the budget. The Music 
Service has been asked for an action plan to identify which activities could stop 
in-year to meet the budget shortfall. 

 

Revenue Virements 

46. 
 

For administrative purposes the following cost centres were transferred from AD 
Learning and Strategic Commissioning area to AD Children’s Services area. 

Profit Centre Description Net Budget 
(£) 

446690 SEN – Learning & 
Inclusion 

0 

 
 
47. 

 
The following cross Directorates virements were posted in the month of 
September. 

Virement 
from 

Vired to Net 
£’000 

Reason 

Office of the 
Chief Exec – 
Performance 
& Risk 

Partnership & 
Workforce 
Development 

134 Transfer of Performance Mgt 
Staff to Children Services 

Sustainable 
Communities 
– Leisure 
Services  

Integrated 
Process Service 

78 Transfer of  two Youth 
Participation Officers to 
Children Services 

Other School 
Budgets –  
School 
meals 
 

Customer & 
Shared Services 
– Facilities 
Maint. & Dev 

111 Transfer of Schools 
meals/Catering budget to 
Facilities Mgt 

 
  

48. Key Cost Drivers 
 

Children’s Services -
Safeguarding activity Safeguarding activity - child protection cases

150

160

170

180

190

200

Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10

Month/Year

N
o
 o
f c
as
es

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 21



Children’s Services –  
Looked After Children 
(excluding respite care) 

  Looked after Children (excluding respite care)

0

50

100

150

200

A
pr
-0
9

M
ay
-0
9

Ju
n-
09

Ju
l-0
9

A
ug
-0
9

S
ep
-0
9

O
ct
-0
9

N
ov
-0
9

D
ec
-0
9

Ja
n-
10

F
eb
-1
0

M
ar
-1
0

A
pr
-1
0

M
ay
-1
0

Ju
n-
10

Ju
l-1
0

A
ug
-1
0

S
ep
-1
0

Month

N
u
m
b
er
s 
o
f C

h
ild
re
n

 
 

Children’s Services –  

Independent Fostering 
Independent Fostering Agency

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

De
c-
09

Ja
n-
10

Fe
b-
10

Ma
r-1
0

Ap
r-1
0

Ma
y-
10

Ju
n-
10

Ju
l-1
0

Au
g-
10

Month

N
u
m
b
er
/£

Children's services 
Independent Fostering
Agency - numbers

Children's services 
Independent Fostering
Agency - daily average
costs

 

Efficiency Implementation 
 
49. Total efficiency savings including Senior Management Review for 2010/11 is set 

at £2.932M. A total of £3,073k has been achieved at the time of this report 
(Appendix C).  

 
Reserves position 
 
50. Appendix D sets out the proposed reserves (closing balances for 09/10 to be 

brought forward into 10/11) and the use of Reserves to date. 
 

Debt Outstanding 

51. Appendix E shows outstanding debt over £10k 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix A - Children Services Revenue Net Expenditure 
Appendix A1 - Movement in Revenue Forecast Variance  
Appendix B – Children Services Capital Net Expenditure 
Appendix C - Targeted Efficiency Savings Summary 
Appendix D - Reserves Closing / Opening balance 
Appendix E - Debtors over 10k 

Agenda Item 12
Page 22



A
pp
en
di
x
A
-
N
et
R
ev
en
ue
E
xp
en
di
tu
re

N
et
R
ev
en
u
e
E
xp
en
d
it
u
re

C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s

P
ro
fil
ed

B
ud
ge
t

A
ct
ua
lt
o

D
at
e

V
ar
ia
nc
e

A
nn
ua
l

B
ud
ge
t

F
or
ec
as
t

O
ut
tu
rn

P
ro
po
se
d

tr
an
sf
er
s

fr
om

ea
rm
ar
ke
d

re
se
rv
es

N
on
-

D
is
cr
et
io
na
ry

C
ar
ry

F
or
w
ar
ds

F
or
ec
as
t

V
ar
ia
nc
e

P
ar
ag
ra
ph

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

D
ire
ct
or
of
C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
S
er
vi
ce
s

93
34

(5
9)

18
5

18
5

0
S
u
b
T
o
ta
lD
ir
ec
to
r

93
34

(5
9)

18
5

18
5

0
0

0

A
D
C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
pe
ra
tio
ns

2,
74
9

2,
61
5

(1
34
)

5,
49
7

5,
62
8

13
1

S
E
N
&
In
cl
us
io
n

50
0

89
1

39
1

1,
00
0

1,
54
2

54
2

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
an
d
C
hi
ld
re
n
in
C
ar
e

1,
94
5

2,
49
9

55
5

3,
88
9

5,
18
0

1,
29
1

C
hi
ld
re
n
w
ith
D
is
ab
ili
tie
s
S
er
vi
ce

1,
50
5

1,
39
2

(1
13
)

3,
01
0

3,
01
0

0
Q
ua
lit
y
A
ss
ur
an
ce
C
R
S

37
8

41
6

38
75
6

83
4

78
F
os
te
rin
g
&
A
do
pt
io
n
S
er
vi
ce

1,
24
5

1,
33
8

94
2,
48
9

2,
53
6

73
(2
6)

Lo
ca
lS
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
B
oa
rd

24
16

(8
)

47
92

25
20

Y
ou
th
S
er
vi
ce

1,
45
4

1,
28
3

(1
71
)

2,
90
8

2,
80
3

7
(1
12
)

E
ar
ly
In
te
rv
en
tio
n
an
d
P
re
ve
nt
io
n

14
8

35
6

20
8

29
6

26
8

(2
8)

S
u
b
T
o
ta
lC
h
ild
re
n
s
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
p
er
at
io
n
s

9,
94
6

10
,8
06

86
0

19
,8
92

21
,8
93

10
5

0
1,
89
6

A
D
Le
ar
ni
ng
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m
is
si
oi
ng

31
0

30
2

(8
)

61
9

55
6

(6
3)

P
ol
ic
y
&
S
tr
at
eg
y

10
0

65
(3
5)

19
9

12
9

(7
0)

Jo
in
tS
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m
is
si
on
S
er
vi
ce

18
5

16
1

(2
4)

37
0

34
2

(2
8)

16
-1
9
C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g

0
(1
6)

(1
6)

0
(2
7)

(2
7)

S
ch
oo
lS
up
po
rt
S
er
vi
ce

15
5

32
6

17
2

30
9

54
4

23
5

O
th
er
S
ch
oo
lB
ud
ge
ts

19
(5
0)

(6
9)

37
37

0
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
an
d
W
or
kf
or
ce
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t

30
5

21
1

(9
4)

61
0

52
1

45
(1
34
)

S
ch
oo
lI
m
pr
ov
em
en
t

82
0

55
2

(2
68
)

1,
63
9

1,
28
7

0
(3
52
)

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
F
un
d

0
(2
8)

(2
8)

0
(2
5)

(2
5)

S
ch
oo
lI
C
T
T
ea
m

15
3

23
9

87
30
5

63
2

33
5

(8
)

M
us
ic
S
er
vi
ce

13
6

27
(1
09
)

27
2

28
1

0
9

S
ch
oo
lO
rg
an
is
at
io
n
&
C
ap
ita
lP
la
nn
in
g

63
7

67
8

42
1,
27
3

1,
33
7

64
S
u
b
T
o
ta
lL
ea
rn
in
g
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

2,
81
7

2,
46
7

(3
50
)

5,
63
3

5,
61
4

38
0

0
(3
99
)

D
ir
ec
to
r
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s
(e
xc
lT
ra
n
sp
o
rt
&
S
ch
o
o
ls
)

12
,8
55

13
,3
07

45
2

25
,7
10

27
,6
92

48
5

0
1,
49
7

JS
C
S
-
T
ra
ns
po
rt
Le
ar
ni
ng
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m

27
2

35
4

82
54
5

51
9

(2
6)

JS
C
S
-
T
ra
ns
po
rt
C
S
O
pe
ra
tio
ns

1,
79
2

1,
62
7

(1
65
)

3,
58
3

3,
60
6

23
JS
C
S
-
M
ai
ns
tr
ea
m
T
ra
ns
po
rt

2,
00
8

2,
04
7

40
4,
52
7

4,
43
3

(9
4)

S
u
b
T
o
ta
lJ
S
C
S
-
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt

4,
07
2

4,
02
8

(4
3)

8,
65
5

8,
55
8

0
0

(9
7)

D
ir
ec
to
r
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s
(e
xc
lS
ch
o
o
ls
)

16
,9
26

17
,3
35

40
9

34
,3
65

36
,2
50

48
5

0
1,
40
0

C
en
tr
al
E
xp
en
d
it
u
re
Y
P
L
A
/D
S
G
(u
n
al
lo
ca
te
d
)

(9
62
)

(8
26
)

13
6

(1
,9
23
)

(1
,9
23
)

0
S
ch
oo
ls
S
pe
ci
fic
C
on
tin
ge
nc
y

0
29
5

29
5

0
29
5

29
5

0

D
ir
ec
to
r
C
h
ild
re
n
,F
am
ili
es
&
L
ea
rn
in
g
(e
xc
lS
ch
o
o
ls
)

15
,9
65

16
,8
04

84
0

32
,4
42

34
,6
22

78
0

0
1,
40
0

In
di
vi
du
al
S
ch
oo
ls
B
ud
ge
t(
IS
B
)

74
,2
06

74
,2
12

7
14
8,
41
1

14
8,
41
1

0
S
up
po
rt
ed
by
:

Y
P
LA

(7
,9
98
)

(7
,9
97
)

1
(1
5,
99
5)

(1
5,
99
5)

0
D
S
G

(6
6,
26
6)

(6
6,
20
8)

58
(1
32
,5
31
)
(1
32
,5
31
)

0
S
u
b
T
o
ta
lS
ch
o
o
ls

(5
8)

7
65

(1
15
)

(1
15
)

0
0

0

T
o
ta
lD
ir
ec
to
r
o
f
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s

15
,9
07

16
,8
11

90
4

32
,3
27

34
,5
07

78
0

0
1,
40
0

Agenda Item 12
Page 23



A
pp
en
di
x
A
1

M
o
ve
m
en
t
in
R
ev
en
u
e
F
o
re
ca
st
V
ar
ia
n
ce

C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s

F
ul
lY
ea
r

F
or
ec
as
t

V
ar
ia
nc
e
as

at
S
ep
te
m
be
r

(Q
tr
2)

F
ul
lY
ea
r

F
or
ec
as
t

V
ar
ia
nc
e
as

Ju
ne
(Q
tr
1)

F
or
ec
as
t

V
ar
ia
nc
e

M
ov
em
en
t

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

D
ire
ct
or
of
C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
S
er
vi
ce
s

0
0

0
S
u
b
T
o
ta
lD
ir
ec
to
r

0
0

0

A
D
C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
pe
ra
tio
ns

13
1

18
6

(5
5)

S
E
N
&
In
cl
us
io
n

54
2

1,
25
3

(7
11
)

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
an
d
C
hi
ld
re
n
in
C
ar
e

1,
29
1

93
1,
19
8

C
hi
ld
re
n
w
ith
D
is
ab
ili
tie
s
S
er
vi
ce

0
0

0
Q
ua
lit
y
A
ss
ur
an
ce
C
R
S

78
41

37
F
os
te
rin
g
&
A
do
pt
io
n
S
er
vi
ce

(2
6)

(7
0)

44
Lo
ca
lS
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
B
oa
rd

20
0

20
Y
ou
th
S
er
vi
ce

(1
12
)

3
(1
15
)

E
ar
ly
In
te
rv
en
tio
n
an
d
P
re
ve
nt
io
n

(2
8)

0
(2
8)

S
u
b
T
o
ta
lC
h
ild
re
n
s
S
er
vi
ce
s
O
p
er
at
io
n
s

1,
89
6

1,
50
6

39
0

A
D
Le
ar
ni
ng
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m
is
si
oi
ng

(6
3)

0
(6
3)

P
ol
ic
y
&
S
tr
at
eg
y

(7
0)

(6
1)

(9
)

Jo
in
tS
tr
at
eg
ic
C
om
m
is
si
on
S
er
vi
ce

(2
8)

(1
32
)

10
4

16
-1
9
C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g

(2
7)

0
(2
7)

S
ch
oo
lS
up
po
rt
S
er
vi
ce

23
5

31
2

(7
7)

O
th
er
S
ch
oo
lB
ud
ge
ts

0
0

0
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
s
an
d
W
or
kf
or
ce
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t

(1
34
)

11
(1
45
)

S
ch
oo
lI
m
pr
ov
em
en
t

(3
52
)

0
(3
52
)

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
F
un
d

(2
5)

0
(2
5)

S
ch
oo
lI
C
T
T
ea
m

(8
)

32
7

(3
35
)

M
us
ic
S
er
vi
ce

9
42
2

(4
13
)

S
ch
oo
lO
rg
an
is
at
io
n
&
C
ap
ita
lP
la
nn
in
g

64
77

(1
3)

S
u
b
T
o
ta
lL
ea
rn
in
g
&
S
tr
at
eg
ic
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g

(3
99
)

95
6

(1
,3
55
)

D
ir
ec
to
r
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s
(e
xc
lT
ra
n
sp
o
rt
&
S
ch
o
o
ls
)

1,
49
7

2,
46
2

(9
65
)

JS
C
S
-
T
ra
ns
po
rt
L
&
S
C

(1
90
)

(5
7)

(1
33
)

JS
C
S
-
T
ra
ns
po
rt

93
0

93
S
u
b
T
o
ta
lJ
S
C
S
-
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt

(9
7)

(5
7)

(4
0)

D
ir
ec
to
r
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s
(e
xc
lS
ch
o
o
ls
)

1,
40
0

2,
40
5

(1
,0
05
)

C
en
tr
al
E
xp
en
d
it
u
re
Y
P
L
A
/D
S
G
(u
n
al
lo
ca
te
d
)

0
0

0
S
ch
oo
ls
S
pe
ci
fic
C
on
tin
ge
nc
y

0
0

0
0

D
ir
ec
to
r
C
h
ild
re
n
,F
am
ili
es
&
L
ea
rn
in
g
(e
xc
lS
ch
o
o
ls
)
in
c

u
n
al
lo
ca
te
d
C
en
tr
al
Y
P
L
A
/D
S
G

1,
40
0

2,
40
5

(1
,0
05
)

In
di
vi
du
al
S
ch
oo
ls
B
ud
ge
t(
IS
B
)

0
0

0
S
up
po
rt
ed
by
:

Y
P
LA

0
0

0
D
S
G

0
0

0
S
u
b
T
o
ta
lS
ch
o
o
ls

0
0

0

T
o
ta
lD
ir
ec
to
r
o
f
C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s

1,
40
0

2,
40
5

(1
,0
05
)

Agenda Item 12
Page 24



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
-
N
et
C
ap
ita
lE
xp
en
di
tu
re

C
E
N
T
R
A
L
B
E
D
F
O
R
D
S
H
IR
E
C
A
P
IT
A
L
R
E
V
IE
W
20
10
/2
01
1

S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
10

B
U
D
G
E
T

A
C
T
U
A
L

V
A
R
IA
N
C
E

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

P
re
20
10
/1
1
S
ta
rt
s:

IC
S

IC
S
is
th
e
ca
se
m
an
ag
em
en
ts
ys
te
m
fo
r

C
hi
lre
n'
s
so
ci
al
ca
re
an
d
re
co
rd
s
da
y
to
da
y

ac
tiv
ie
s
of
ou
r
cl
ie
nt
s.

0
8

8
8

0
8

24
0

24
24

0
24

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
le
ct
ro
ni
c
S
oc
ia
lC
ar
e
R
ec
or
d

E
S
C
R
(E
le
ct
ro
ni
c
S
oc
ia
lC
ar
e
R
ec
or
d)
H
av
in
g

E
le
ct
ro
ni
c
ca
se
fil
es
w
ill
al
le
vi
at
e
th
e
ne
ed
fo
r

pa
pe
r
fil
es
an
d
m
ak
e
C
en
tr
al
B
ef
or
ds
hi
re

co
m
pl
ia
nt
fo
r
E
S
C
R
.

0
0

0
0

0
0

10
7

0
10
7

10
7

0
10
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
ed
bo
rn
e
U
pp
er
S
ch
oo
lD
es
ig
n
B
lo
ck
ph
as
e
2

Im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
to
ad
dr
es
s
su
ita
bi
lit
y
an
d

su
ffi
ci
en
cy
is
su
es
to
en
ab
le
th
e
sc
ho
ol
to
of
fe
r

an
ap
pr
op
ria
te
D
es
ig
n
an
d
T
ec
hn
ol
og
y

cu
rr
ic
ul
um
.

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

G
re
en
fie
ld
V
C
Lo
w
er
R
ep
la
ce
m
en
tS
ch
oo
l

T
he
pr
oj
ec
tp
ro
po
se
s
th
e
re
pl
ac
em
en
to
ft
he

tw
o
ex
is
tin
g
sc
ho
ol
s
at
G
re
en
fie
ld
an
d
P
ul
lo
xh
ill

w
ith
a
ne
w
on
e
fo
rm
en
tr
y
(1
50
pl
ac
e)
Lo
w
er

S
ch
oo
lo
n
a
ne
w
si
te
(s
til
lt
o
be
id
en
tif
ie
d
in

F
lit
to
n)
.

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

O
ak
ba
nk
S
pe
ci
al
S
ch
oo
lI
m
pr
ov
em
en
ts

T
he
pr
oj
ec
tw
as
ag
re
ed
by
th
e
fo
rm
er
C
ou
nt
y

C
ou
nc
il
as
pa
rt
of
an
im
pr
ov
em
en
tp
ro
gr
am
m
e

fo
r
O
ak
ba
nk
S
ch
oo
lw
he
n
it
ex
te
nd
ed
its
ag
e

ra
ng
e
an
d
in
cr
ea
se
d
its

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
oe
cr
of
tL
ow
er
re
lo
ca
tio
n

T
hi
s
pr
oj
ec
ti
s
to
pr
ov
id
e
R
oe
cr
of
tL
ow
er
S
ch
oo
l

in
st
ot
fo
ld
w
ith
a
ne
w
sc
ho
ol
on
a
ne
w
si
te
fr
om

se
pt
20
11
,i
n
re
ps
on
se
to
in
cr
ea
se
d
po
pu
la
tio
n

fr
om

th
e
lo
ca
lg
ro
w
th
ar
ea
,m
ee
tin
g
th
e

C
ou
nc
il'
s
st
at
ut
or
y
ob
lig
at
io
ns

23
0

(5
2)

17
8

1,
16
0

(9
82
)

17
8

93
0

(9
30
)

0
2,
29
3

(2
,1
15
)

17
8

2,
29
3

(2
,1
15
)

17
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
to
nb
ur
y
M
id
dl
e
S
ch
oo
la
dd
iti
on
al
pl
ac
es

T
he
pr
oj
ec
ti
s
to
pr
ov
id
e
ad
di
tio
na
lp
up
il
pl
ac
es

in
re
sp
on
se
to
re
ce
nt
ho
us
in
g
de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts
in

th
e
ar
ea
,u
til
is
in
g
th
e
ap
pr
ov
ed
S
10
6
pl
an
ni
ng

ob
lig
at
io
ns
fu
nd
in
g.

15
(1
5)

0
0

0
(1
5)

15
0

20
0

(2
00
)

0
20
0

(2
00
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
ll
S
ai
nt
s
A
ca
de
m
y

T
he
pr
oj
ec
ti
nc
lu
de
s
th
e
re
bu
ild
an
d

re
fu
rb
is
hm
en
to
fb
ui
ld
in
gs
pr
ev
io
us
ly
co
m
pr
is
in
g

th
e
fo
rm
er
N
or
th
fie
ld
s
te
ch
no
lo
gy
C
ol
le
ge
,n
ow

A
ll
S
ai
nt
s’
A
ca
de
m
y,
D
un
st
ab
le
,a
s
pa
rt
of
th
e

pr
ev
io
us
G
ov
er
nm
en
t's
A
ca
de
m
y
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.

36
3

(3
63
)

0
12
6

12
6

(2
37
)

36
3

12
6

1,
07
6

(8
76
)

20
0

1,
07
6

(8
76
)

20
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
ea
ch
in
g
/L
ea
rn
in
g
P
ra
ct
ic
al
F
oo
d
S
ki
lls
at
K
S
3

at
G
ilb
er
tI
ng
le
fie
ld
an
d
P
ar
kf
ie
ld
s
M
id
dl
e

S
ch
oo
ls
.

G
ilb
er
tI
ng
le
fie
ld
an
d
P
ar
kf
ie
ld
s
M
id
dl
e
S
ch
oo
ls

ar
e
to
be
pr
ov
id
ed
w
ith
a
ne
w
pu
rp
os
e-
bu
ilt

pr
ac
tic
al
F
oo
d
ro
om
.T
he
ne
w
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
w
ill

en
ab
le
th
e
S
ch
o

22
9

(2
29
)

0
12
0

(1
20
)

0
(1
09
)

10
9

0
64
6

(6
46
)

0
64
6

(6
46
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
ith
e
F
ar
m
Lo
w
er

T
he
us
e
of
P
rim
ar
y
ca
pi
ta
lF
un
di
ng
to
tr
an
sf
or
m

th
e
“t
ire
d”
an
d
un
su
ita
bl
e
ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n
at

T
ith
e
F
ar
m
Lo
w
er
S
ch
oo
lt
o
pr
ov
id
e
a
C
21
st

en
vi
ro
nm
en
tc
ap
ab
le
of
pr
ov
id
in
g

ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n
fit
to
m
ee
tt
he
ne
ed
s
of

te
ac
hi
ng
an
d
Le
ar
ni
ng
an
d
to
su

0
37

(3
7)

0
37

(3
7)

0
60

(6
0)

0
60

(6
0)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

O
ve
r
/u
n
d
er
sp
en
d

S
lip
p
ag
e
to
20
11
/1
2

F
o
re
ca
st

V
ar
ia
n
ce

T
it
le
an
d
D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
ch
em
e

R
ev
is
ed
20
10
/1
1
B
u
d
g
et

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
3

Agenda Item 12
Page 25



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
-
N
et
C
ap
ita
lE
xp
en
di
tu
re

S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
10

B
U
D
G
E
T

A
C
T
U
A
L

V
A
R
IA
N
C
E

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

O
ve
r
/u
n
d
er
sp
en
d

S
lip
p
ag
e
to
20
11
/1
2

F
o
re
ca
st

V
ar
ia
n
ce

T
it
le
an
d
D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
ch
em
e

R
ev
is
ed
20
10
/1
1
B
u
d
g
et

S
ch
oo
ls
A
cc
es
s
In
iti
at
iv
e

T
he
re
is
a
pr
og
ra
m
m
e
to
en
ab
le
th
e
C
ou
nc
il
to

m
ee
ti
ts
S
ta
tu
to
ry
ob
lig
at
io
ns
.T
he
re
is
a

S
ta
tu
to
ry
du
ty
on
th
e
C
ou
nc
il
to
ha
ve
an
ag
re
ed

ac
ce
ss
ib
ili
ty
st
ra
te
gy
to
en
ab
le
lo
ca
lp
up
ils
to

at
te
nd
(lo
ca
l)
sc
ho
ol
.T
he
re
is
of
te
n
a
re
q

35
6

35
6

10
1

10
1

(2
55
)

0
(2
55
)

59
3

0
59
3

59
3

59
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

A
sb
es
to
s
/H
ea
lth
&
S
af
et
y

P
ro
gr
am
m
e
of
as
be
st
os
re
m
ov
al
in
sc
ho
ol
s
an
d

va
rio
us
H
&
S
re
la
te
d
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
in
cl
ud
in
g
a

pr
og
ra
m
m
e
of
fir
e
al
ar
m
up
gr
ad
es
in
sc
ho
ol
s,

ga
s
sa
fe
ty
sh
ut
of
fs
ys
te
m
s
in
sc
ho
ol
ki
tc
he
ns
,

el
ec
tr
ic
al
sa
fe
ty
is
su
es
,g
la
zi
ng
up
gr
ad
es
an

29
1

29
1

33
33

(2
58
)

0
(2
58
)

76
4

(6
7)

69
7

76
4

(6
7)

69
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

A
rn
ol
d
M
id
dl
e
S
ch
oo
l(
H
&
S
pa
rt
of
la
rg
er
ph
as
e

3
pr
oj
ec
t)

T
he
pr
oj
ec
tw
ill
m
ee
tt
he
ne
ed
s,
fir
st
id
en
tif
ie
d
in

20
03
,t
o
im
pr
ov
e
th
e
ad
m
in
is
tr
at
io
n
an
d
m
us
ic

fa
ci
lit
ie
s
fo
r
A
rn
ol
d
M
id
dl
e
S
ch
oo
la
s
pa
rt
of
th
e

ov
er
al
le
nl
ar
ge
m
en
to
ft
he
S
ch
oo
lt
o
60
0

pe
rm
an

57
57

1
1

(5
6)

0
(5
6)

30
7

(5
6)

25
1

30
7

(5
6)

25
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
to
S
ch
oo
lK
itc
he
ns
an
d
D
in
in
g

R
oo
m
s

T
he
ai
m
of
ea
ch
pr
oj
ec
ti
s
to
in
cr
ea
se
th
e
ta
ke
-

up
of
sc
ho
ol
lu
nc
he
s
by
ac
hi
ev
in
g
on
e
or
m
or
e

of
fo
ur
go
al
s
as
se
tb
y
th
e
D
C
S
F
.
T
he
fo
ur

go
al
s
ar
e
to
im
pr
ov
e
th
e
qu
al
ity
of
th
e
fo
od
on

of
fe
r,
to
in
cr
ea
se
s

62
2

(6
22
)

0
60
7

(6
07
)

0
(1
5)

15
0

62
2

(6
22
)

0
62
2

(6
22
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
E
as
tS
ch
oo
ls
T
ru
st
C
o
Lo
ca
tio
n

pr
oj
ec
t-
S
am
ue
lW

hi
tb
re
ad

P
ro
je
ct
fu
nd
ed
th
ro
ug
h
th
e
D
C
S
F
C
ol
oc
at
io
n

fu
nd
an
d
in
co
m
e
fr
om

ea
rly
ye
ar
s
gr
an
tt
o

pr
ov
id
e
co
lo
ca
te
d
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
fo
r
be
ds
po
lic
e,

te
ac
he
r
tr
ai
ni
ng
,b
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
N
H
S
,e
xt
en
de
d

sc
ho
ol
s

1,
35
1

(1
,3
51
)

0
1,
42
4

(1
,4
24
)

0
73

(7
3)

0
2,
31
2

(2
,3
12
)

0
2,
31
2

(2
,3
12
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
ch
oo
ls
D
ev
ol
ve
d
F
or
m
ul
a
C
ap
ita
l

T
hi
s
fu
nd
in
g
is
fo
r
sc
ho
ol
s
to
us
e
on
ca
pi
ta
l

co
nd
iti
on
/i
m
pr
ov
em
en
tw
or
k
on
th
ei
r
bu
ild
in
gs

in
lin
e
w
ith
th
e
pr
io
rit
ie
s
in
th
ei
r
S
ch
oo
l

Im
pr
ov
em
en
tP
la
n
[S
IP
]a
nd
w
ith
in
th
e
co
nt
ex
t

of
th
e
S
ch
oo
l's
A
ss
et
M
an
ag
em
en
tP
la
n

1,
79
1

(1
,7
91
)

0
1,
01
0

(1
,0
10
)

0
(7
81
)

78
1

0
4,
40
5

(4
,4
05
)

0
4,
40
5

(4
,4
05
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
T
o
ta
lp
re
20
10
/1
1
st
ar
ts

5,
30
5

(4
,4
23
)

88
2

4,
62
7

(4
,1
80
)

44
7

(6
78
)

24
3

(4
35
)

13
,4
09

(1
1,
35
9)

2,
05
0

13
,4
09

(1
1,
35
9)

2,
05
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

20
10
/1
1
S
ta
rt
s:

0
0

0
0

0

N
ew

D
ea
lf
or
S
ch
oo
ls
M
od
er
ni
sa
tio
n

M
od
er
ni
sa
tio
n
fu
nd
in
g
is
cu
rr
en
tly
th
e
on
ly

fu
nd
in
g
av
ai
la
bl
e
to
ad
dr
es
s
th
e
hi
gh
es
tp
rio
rit
y

R
ep
ai
r
an
d
M
ai
nt
en
an
ce
ne
ed
s
ac
ro
ss
th
e

sc
ho
ol
s
es
ta
te
.I
tw
ou
ld
al
so
be
ex
pe
ct
ed
to
be

us
ed
to
ad
dr
es
s
th
e
h

1,
37
3

(8
40
)

53
3

28
9

0
28
9

(1
,0
84
)

84
0

(2
44
)

3,
40
6

(2
,5
95
)

81
1

3,
40
6

(2
,5
95
)

81
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
hi
ld
re
ns
C
en
tr
es
(G
en
er
al
S
ur
e
S
ta
rt
G
ra
nt
)
-

N
on
S
ch
oo
l

C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
C
en
tr
es
pr
oj
ec
ts
:

8
ne
w
ph
as
e
3
ce
nt
re
s,
m
aj
or
ex
te
ns
io
n
to
a

ph
as
e
on
e
ce
nt
re
(T
ith
e
F
ar
m
Lo
w
er
S
ch
oo
l),

im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
to
2
ph
as
e
tw
o
ce
nt
re
s.

A
sm
al
lp
ro
po
rt
io
n
of
th
e
gr
an
ti
s
di
re
ct
ed

1,
30
8

(1
,3
08
)

0
31
5

(3
15
)

0
(9
93
)

99
3

0
3,
48
3

(3
,4
83
)

0
2,
15
2

(2
,1
52
)

0
(1
,3
31
)

1,
33
1

0
(1
,3
31
)

1,
33
1

0
0

0

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
4

Agenda Item 12
Page 26



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
B
-
N
et
C
ap
ita
lE
xp
en
di
tu
re

S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
10

B
U
D
G
E
T

A
C
T
U
A
L

V
A
R
IA
N
C
E

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

E
xt
er
n
al

F
u
n
d
in
g

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
re

G
ro
ss

E
xp
en
d
it
u
r

e

N
et

E
xe
n
d
it
u
r

e

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

£0
00
s

O
ve
r
/u
n
d
er
sp
en
d

S
lip
p
ag
e
to
20
11
/1
2

F
o
re
ca
st

V
ar
ia
n
ce

T
it
le
an
d
D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
S
ch
em
e

R
ev
is
ed
20
10
/1
1
B
u
d
g
et

S
ho
rt
B
re
ak
s
(A
H
D
C
)

T
hi
s
is
rin
g
fe
nc
ed
ca
pi
ta
lf
un
di
ng
w
hi
ch
is

pr
ov
id
ed
th
ro
ug
h
th
e
S
ur
e
S
ta
rt
G
ra
nt
.I
ti
s

sp
ec
ifi
ca
lly
to
su
pp
or
tt
he
tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n
of

se
rv
ic
es
to
di
sa
bl
ed
ch
ild
re
n
an
d
th
ei
r
fa
m
ili
es
,

in
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
th
e
pr
ov
is
io
n
of
sh
or
tb
re
ak
s.
F
ro

44
(4
4)

0
(1
)

1
0

(4
5)

45
0

21
9

(2
19
)

0
45
6

(4
56
)

0
23
7

(2
37
)

0
23
7

(2
37
)

0
0

0

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
F
un
d
fo
r
E
xt
en
de
d
S
ch
oo
l s

A
ne
w
pr
es
ch
oo
la
tM
ap
le
T
re
e
Lo
w
er
S
ch
oo
l.

F
un
di
ng
ha
s
be
en
w
ith
dr
aw
n
fo
r
ot
he
r
pr
oj
ec
ts

bu
tm
ay
be
re
in
st
at
ed
.
C
B
C
ha
ve
ye
tt
o
be

ad
vi
se
d.

21
1

(2
11
)

0
76

(7
6)

0
(1
35
)

13
5

0
21
1

(2
11
)

0
21
1

(2
11
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

T
em
po
ra
ry
A
cc
om
m
od
at
io
n

T
he
pu
rp
os
e
of
th
is
ro
lli
ng
pr
og
ra
m
m
e
is
to

en
ab
le
th
e
co
un
ci
lt
o
m
ee
t“
un
fo
re
se
en
”
or
sh
or
t

te
rm
ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n
ne
ed
s
as
a
re
su
lt
of

in
cr
ea
se
d
in
ta
ke
s
in
to
sc
ho
ol
s
or
as
a
re
su

39
39

24
24

(1
5)

0
(1
5)

10
0

0
10
0

10
0

10
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

H
ol
m
em
ea
d
S
ch
oo
lA
S
D
P
ro
vi
si
o n

T
he
re
-p
ro
vi
si
on
in
g
of
th
e
Li
br
ar
y
an
d
IC
T
S
ui
te

in
ne
w
bu
ild
at
ta
ch
ed
to
th
e
S
po
rt
s
H
al
l,
an
d
a

re
fu
rb
is
hm
en
to
ft
he
ex
is
tin
g
lib
ra
ry
an
d
IC
T

S
ui
te
to
be
co
m
e
th
e
A
S
D
P
ro
vi
si
on
an
d
an
ci
l

27
6

27
6

96
96

(1
80
)

0
(1
80
)

53
1

0
53
1

53
1

53
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Y
ou
th
C
ap
ita
lF
un
d
-
N
on
S
ch
oo
l

C
re
at
e/
en
ha
nc
e
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
fo
r
yo
un
g
pe
op
le
an
d

pr
ov
id
e
eq
ui
pm
en
tt
o
en
ab
le
po
si
tiv
e
ac
tiv
iti
es

30
(3
0)

0
38

(3
8)

0
8

(8
)

0
61

(6
1)

0
60

(6
0)

0
(1
)

1
0

(1
)

1
0

0
0

In
te
gr
at
ed
Y
ou
th
S
up
po
rt
S
er
vi
ce
s

C
o-
lo
ca
tio
n
of
th
e
A
ut
ho
rit
ie
s
Y
ou
th
S
up
po
rt

S
er
vi
ce
s
w
ith
th
e
fr
on
tl
in
e
de
liv
er
y
se
rv
ic
es

fr
om

th
e
th
ird
se
ct
or
in
D
un
st
ab
le
/H
ou
gh
to
n

R
eg
is
to
en
su
re
th
at
yo
un
g
pe
op
le
re
ce
iv
e
th
e

ap
p

91
(9
1)

0
0

0
(9
1)

91
0

18
3

(1
83
)

0
18
2

(1
82
)

0
(1
)

1
0

(1
)

1
0

0
0

P
ro
gr
am
m
e
to
av
oi
d
us
e
of
te
m
p

ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n

T
he
pu
rp
os
e
of
th
is
ro
lli
ng
pr
og
ra
m
m
e
is
to

re
du
ce
th
e
de
pe
nd
en
cy
up
on
te
m
po
ra
ry

ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n
w
hi
ch
is
ot
he
rw
is
e
fu
lfi
lli
ng
a

pe
rm
an
en
tn
ee
d.

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
am
pt
on
Lo
w
er
S
ch
oo
l-
re
pl
ac
e
te
m
p
un
its
an
d

un
de
rs
iz
ed
ha
ll

T
he
cu
rr
en
tp
ro
je
ct
w
ith
in
th
e
pr
og
ra
m
m
e
is
fo
r

th
e
re
pl
ac
em
en
to
ft
im
e
ex
pi
re
d
te
m
po
ra
ry

cl
as
sr
oo
m
s
an
d
th
e
pr
ov
is
io
n
of
a
n

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
o
ta
l2
01
0/
11
S
ta
rt
s:

3,
37
2

(2
,5
24
)

84
8

83
7

(4
28
)

40
9

(2
,5
35
)

2,
09
6

(4
39
)

8,
19
3

(6
,7
51
)

1,
44
2

7,
09
8

(5
,6
56
)

1,
44
2

(1
,0
95
)

1,
09
5

0
(1
,0
96
)

1,
09
6

0
0

0

T
o
ta
lC
ap
it
al
20
10
/1
1

8,
67
7

(6
,9
47
)

1,
73
0

5,
46
4

(4
,6
08
)

85
6

(3
,2
13
)

2,
33
9

(8
74
)

21
,6
02

(1
8,
11
0)

3,
49
2

20
,5
07

(1
7,
01
5)

3,
49
2

(1
,0
95
)

1,
09
5

0
(1
,0
96
)

1,
09
6

0
0

0

N
o
t
in
C
ap
it
al
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

C
ad
di
ng
to
n
V
ill
ag
e
S
ch
oo
l

14
(1
4)

0
14

(1
4)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
20
08
/0
9
C
hi
ld
re
ns
B
al
an
ce
s

64
0

64
64

0
64

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
tS
w
ith
un
s

33
(3
3)

0
33

(3
3)

0
33

33
33

0
33

33
0

33
S
ec
tio
n
10
6

23
2

(2
32
)

0
10
4

(1
04
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
ed
bo
rn
e
S
pe
ci
al
is
tS
ch
oo
ls
C
ap
ita
l

25
0

25
25

0
25

0
0

0
25

(2
5)

0
25

(2
5)

0
25

(2
5)

0
0

0
H
ar
lin
gt
on
T
ru
st
S
ch
oo
ls

25
(2
5)

0
25

(2
5)

0
0

0
0

0
0

39
3

(3
04
)

89
26
5

(1
76
)

89
0

0
0

58
(2
5)

33
58

(2
5)

33
58

(2
5)

33
0

0

T
o
ta
l

8,
67
7

(6
,9
47
)

1,
73
0

5,
85
7

(4
,9
12
)

94
5

(2
,9
48
)

2,
16
3

(7
85
)

21
,6
02

(1
8,
11
0)

3,
49
2

20
,5
65

-1
7,
04
0

3,
52
5

-1
,0
37

1,
07
0

33
-1
,0
38

1,
07
1

33
0

0

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
5

Agenda Item 12
Page 27



T
a
rg
e
te
d
E
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
S
a
vi
n
g
s
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
-
S
u
m
m
a
ry

M
o
n
th
:

Se
p
20
10

U
p
d
a
te
d
o
n
:

01
/1
0/
10

Se
rv
ic
e
A
re
a

20
10
/1
1

Bu
dg
et

Co
m
m
en
ts
(p
le
as
e
in
cl
ud
e
he
re
ex
pl
an
at
io
ns

ar
ou
nd
th
e
cu
rr
en
t
st
at
us
of
th
e
ef
fic
ie
nc
y
i.e
w
hy

it
is
or
is
no
t
on
ta
rg
et
an
d
th
e
fu
ll
ye
ar

im
pl
ic
at
io
ns
)

M
on
th

Ye
ar
to
da
te

Fu
ll
Ye
ar

C
h
il
d
re
n
s
S
er
vi
ce
s

£m
Bu
dg
et £m

A
ct
ua
l

£m
V
ar
ia
nc
e

Bu
dg
et £m

A
ct
ua
l

£m
V
ar
ia
nc
e

Bu
dg
et £m

Fo
re
ca
st
£m

V
ar
ia
nc
e

E
ff
ic
ie
n
ci
es

U
p
d
a
te
d
o
n
:

Le
ar
ni
ng
&
St
ra
te
gi
c
C
om
m
is
si
on
in
g

M
an
ag
em
en
t

0.
17
2
Se
ni
or
M
an
ag
em
en
t
R
ev
ie
w
an
d

C
or
po
ra
te
Ef
fic
ie
nc
ie
s

0.
01
7

0.
02
0

0
.0
0
3

0.
07
0

0.
09
4

0
.0
2
4

0.
17
2

0.
21
5

0
.0
4
4

Sc
ho
ol
O
rg
an
is
at
io
n

0.
07
0
R
ea
lig
n
Se
rv
ic
e
an
d
re
du
ce

C
on
su
lta
nc
y
co
st
s

0.
00
6

0.
00
6

0
.0
0
0

0.
03
5

0.
03
5

0
.0
0
0

0.
07
0

0.
07
0

(0
.0
0
0
)

Po
lic
y
&
St
ra
te
gy

0.
04
0
H
ea
dc
ou
nt
re
du
ct
io
n

0.
00
3

0.
00
3

0
.0
0
0

0.
02
0

0.
02
0

(0
.0
0
0
)

0.
04
0

0.
12
6

0
.0
8
6

H
om
e
to
Sc
ho
ol
Tr
an
sp
or
t

0.
50
0
Po
lic
y
C
ha
ng
es
an
d
re
te
nd
er

co
nt
ra
ct
s

0.
06
5

0.
06
5

0
.0
0
0

0.
10
7

0.
10
7

(0
.0
0
0
)

0.
50
0

0.
50
0

0
.0
0
0

Sc
ho
ol
Im
pr
ov
em
en
t

0.
23
5
H
ea
dc
ou
nt
re
du
ct
io
n
an
d
re
du
ce

pr
in
tin
g
co
st
s

0.
02
0

0.
02
8

0
.0
0
9

0.
11
7

0.
13
5

0
.0
1
8

0.
23
5

0.
30
6

0
.0
7
1

Pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p
an
d
W
or
kf
or
ce

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t

0.
05
4
H
ea
dc
ou
nt
re
du
ct
io
n

0.
00
5

0.
00
5

0
.0
0
0

0.
02
7

0.
02
7

0
.0
0
0

0.
05
4

0.
05
4

0
.0
0
0

Sc
ho
ol
Su
pp
or
t

0.
66
8
M
us
ic
Se
rv
ic
e
/
PR
U
/
A
dm
is
si
on
s

0.
05
6

0.
04
8

(0
.0
0
8
)

0.
33
4

0.
11
8

(0
.2
1
6
)

0.
66
8

0.
51
2

(0
.1
5
6
)

C
hi
ld
re
n'
s
Se
rv
ic
es
O
pe
ra
tio
ns

0.
10
5
Se
ni
or
M
an
ag
em
en
t
R
ev
ie
w
an
d

C
or
po
ra
te
Ef
fic
ie
nc
ie
s

0.
01
0

0.
01
0

0
.0
0
0

0.
04
4

0.
04
4

0
.0
0
0

0.
10
5

0.
10
5

0
.0
0
0

Sp
ec
ia
lE
du
ca
tio
n
N
ee
ds
&
In
cl
us
io
n

0.
70
0
O
ut
of
C
ou
nt
y
Pl
ac
em
en
ts
/I
nc
re
as
e

Se
rv
ic
e
In
co
m
e/
SE
N
H
ea
dc
ou
nt

re
du
ct
io
n

0.
09
8

0.
35
3

0
.2
5
6

0.
11
4

0.
70
6

0
.5
9
2

0.
70
0

0.
72
6

0
.0
2
6

Yo
ut
h
Se
rv
ic
e

0.
10
5
R
ed
uc
e
sp
en
d

0.
00
9

0.
00
9

0
.0
0
0

0.
05
2

0.
05
2

(0
.0
0
0
)

0.
10
5

0.
10
5

(0
.0
0
0
)

Ed
uc
at
io
n
W
el
fa
re

0.
04
6
H
ea
dc
ou
nt
re
du
ct
io
n

0.
00
4

0.
00
4

0
.0
0
0

0.
02
3

0.
02
3

(0
.0
0
0
)

0.
04
6

0.
04
6

(0
.0
0
0
)

Sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
&
LA
C

0.
05
0
H
ea
dc
ou
nt
re
du
ct
io
n

0.
00
5

0.
00
5

0
.0
0
0

0.
02
0

0.
02
0

0
.0
0
0

0.
05
0

0.
05
0

0
.0
0
0

In
te
gr
at
ed
Pr
oc
es
se
s

0.
18
7
R
ed
uc
e
sp
en
d

0.
01
6

0.
01
6

0
.0
0
0

0.
09
3

0.
16
3

0
.0
7
0

0.
18
7

0.
25
7

0
.0
7
0

T
O
T
A
L

2
.9
3
2

0
.3
1
2

0
.5
7
3

0
.2
6
0

1
.0
5
8

1
.5
4
5

0
.4
8
7

2
.9
3
2

3
.0
7
3

0
.1
4
0

P
re
ss
u
re
s

In
Ye
ar
A
BG
cu
ts

1.
17
2

In
Ye
ar
H
ar
ne
ss
in
g
Te
ch
no
lo
gy
cu
t

0.
56
1

In
cr
ea
se
in
So
ci
al
C
ar
e
ca
se
s

1.
00
0

A
BG
ac
tiv
ity
-
po
te
nt
ia
lr
ed
un
da
nc
ie
s

tb
a

2.
73
3

Agenda Item 12
Page 28



A
pp
en
di
x
D
-
R
es
er
ve
s
C
hi
ld
re
n
S
er
vi
ce
s

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n

C
lo
si
n
g

B
la
n
ce

20
09
/1
0

N
ew

fo
r

20
10
/1
1

P
ro
p
o
se
d

u
se
20
10
/1
1

P
ro
p
o
se
d

tr
an
sf
er
s
to

C
lo
si
n
g

b
al
an
ce

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

£'
00
0

C
h
ild
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s

S
ch
oo
lF
or
um

3
0

3
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
F
un
d

33
33

Lo
ca
lS
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g
C
hi
ld
re
n
B
oa
rd
(L
S
C
B
)

25
25

0
D
ev
el
op
in
g
S
pe
ci
al
is
tP
ro
vi
si
on
s
-
A
S
D
Lo
w
er
S
ch

19
1

19
1

D
ev
el
op
in
g
S
pe
ci
al
is
tP
ro
vi
si
on
s
-
A
S
D
M
id
dl
e
S
ch

23
2

23
2

F
am
ily
Li
nk

73
73

0
S
ch
oo
lS
pe
ci
fic
C
on
tin
ge
nc
y

87
4

29
5

57
9

Lo
ng
T
er
m
A
bs
en
ce
(S
ch
oo
ls
)

64
64

30
30
06
0

1,
49
5

0
39
3

0
1,
10
2

S
ch
o
o
lR
es
er
ve
s

R
ev
en
ue
30
30
05
0

7,
88
8

7,
88
8

C
ap
ita
l3
03
00
33

6,
03
0

6,
03
0

13
,9
18

0
0

0
13
,9
18

F
un
de
d
fr
om

C
or
po
ra
te
R
es
er
ve
s

38
7

G
R
A
N
D
T
O
T
A
L

15
,4
13

0
78
0

0
15
,0
20

R
es
er
ve
s
-
C
h
ild
re
n
S
er
vi
ce
s

Agenda Item 12
Page 29



A
p
p
en
d
ix
E
-
D
eb
ts
o
ve
r
£1
0k

C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
'S
S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
-
D
E
B
T
S
O
V
E
R
£1
0k
A
S
A
T
S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
20
10
(Q
U
A
R
T
E
R
T
W
O
)

D
A
T
E

C
u
st
o
m
er
N
u
m
b
er

N
A
M
E
O
F
A
C
C
O
U
N
T

A
m
o
u
n
t

05
/0
1/
20
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

35
,8
37
.5
0

£
18
/0
1/
20
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

16
,1
75
.6
0

£
05
/0
3/
20
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

8,
57
9.
36

£
17
/0
3/
20
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

18
,6
83
.7
0

£
19
/0
3/
20
10

14
29
56

O
T
H
E
R
G
O
V
D
E
P
T

17
,2
66
.0
0

£
26
/0
3/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

35
,8
51
.0
0

£
13
/0
4/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

14
,3
68
.5
7

£
11
/0
5/
10

14
48
08

O
T
H
E
R
G
O
V
D
E
P
T

12
,1
03
.8
0

£
12
/0
5/
10

10
96
40

O
T
H
E
R
G
O
V
D
E
P
T

4,
18
4.
69

£
19
/0
5/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

32
8,
95
6.
00

£
19
/0
5/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

31
9,
21
6.
00

£
19
/0
5/
10

13
77
62

O
T
H
E
R
LA

32
4,
43
4.
00

£
12
/0
7/
10

11
40
55

O
T
H
E
R
G
O
V
D
E
P
T

16
,5
60
.0
0

£
02
/0
8/
10

13
38
37

D
E
B
T
O
R
1

23
,0
50
.0
0

£
04
/0
8/
10

15
05
34

D
E
B
T
O
R
2

19
,1
27
.2
4

£
05
/0
8/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

28
5,
10
1.
61

£
05
/0
8/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

15
5,
70
7.
35

£
24
/0
8/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

82
,2
74
.0
0

£
02
/0
9/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

60
,7
69
.0
0

£
02
/0
9/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

31
,5
00
.0
0

£
07
/0
9/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

29
,8
69
.5
1

£
07
/0
9/
10

11
17
49

S
C
H
O
O
L

14
,7
76
.8
0

£
08
/0
9/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

24
5,
16
5.
72

£
15
/0
9/
10

14
21
58

O
T
H
E
R
LA

45
,0
00
.0
0

£
22
/0
9/
10

11
41
28

S
C
H
O
O
L

10
,1
81
.0
0

£
25
/0
9/
10

11
17
49

S
C
H
O
O
L

18
,8
81
.1
9

£
25
/0
9/
10

11
17
49

S
C
H
O
O
L

34
3,
19
6.
48

£
25
/0
9/
10

11
50
88

S
C
H
O
O
L

24
9,
52
6.
50

£
28
/0
9/
10

10
97
83

O
T
H
E
R
LA

63
0,
85
1.
00

£
30
/0
9/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

18
4,
09
0.
05

£
30
/0
9/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

61
,0
75
.6
7

£
01
/1
0/
10

11
50
88

S
C
H
O
O
L

41
,5
87
.7
5

£
01
/1
0/
10

11
17
49

S
C
H
O
O
L

57
,1
99
.4
2

£
01
/1
0/
10

10
95
72

O
T
H
E
R
LA

27
,7
95
.4
9

£

3,
76
8,
94
2.
00

£

8
of
8

Agenda Item 12
Page 30



 1 

 
 
 
Meeting: Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 21 December 2010 

Subject: The Future of Special Schooling in the South of Central 
Bedfordshire 
Proposal to publish Statutory Notices to discontinue the 
Dyslexia Provision at Priory Middle School 
 

Report of: Cllr Mrs Anita Lewis, Portfolio Holder Children’s Services  

Summary: The report outlines the amended options for special educational needs 
provisions that are subject to statutory consultations and therefore do 
not fall within the remit of delegations to the Director of Children’s 
Services or the budget consultation process.  These are the future of 
special schooling in the South of Central Bedfordshire and the dyslexia 
unit in Priory Middle School  
 
The report sets out the proposal to publish statutory notices to 
discontinue the dyslexia provision at Priory Middle School. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Edwina Grant, Deputy Chief Executive / Director of Children’s 

Services 
Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
The provision of effective and efficient local services for Special Education Needs 
forms a key element in the Central Bedfordshire Children’s Services.  It aligns with 
priorities and programmes on Early Intervention and on transforming learning and 
transforming the Council’s relationship with schools.  It will support the cross cutting 
responsibilities for Health that will be determined by the anticipated new 
responsibilities for the Council in making arrangements for the new Health and 
Wellbeing Boards. 
 
The proposal relates to the Council’s Key Priority: 

• Educating, protecting and providing opportunities for children and young 
people. 

Agenda Item 13
Page 31



 2 

Financial: 
 
The most significant medium to long-term financial impact will be in reduction of ‘Out 
of Authority’ and agency provision for Central Bedfordshire children. The proposed 
model of Area Special School, alongside that already available at Ivel Valley School 
and Maythorn in Biggleswade, could provide an opportunity to bring 3 pupils who are 
currently placed in out of Authority placements back to local provision, and negate the 
possibility of other pupils with similar needs being placed out of Authority in the future. 
 
Options 2 and 3 could deliver savings of £91,465 and £197,032 respectively.  There 
will need to be an alteration of the lump sum of the delegated school formula via the 
School Forum to reflect the increased size and split site nature of both Option 2 and 
Option 3.  A proportion of these savings could contribute to any revisions to the 
funding formula.  Subject to the Council’s Asset Management Policy, future 
consideration could be given to the disposal of one site, and possible future use of 
capital finance to extend the buildings on another site to create a two-sited school.   

Discontinuation of the current dyslexia provision as set out in the report could deliver a 
full year saving of £58,000.   
 
Legal: 

Any change to the statutory operation of a school or designated provision within a 
school requires formal consultation on published proposals within due process.  
Additionally, parents may seek to challenge the position of the council on individual 
cases by application to the SEN and Disability Tribunal (SENDIST). The proposed 
discontinuation of the dyslexia provision at Priory Middle School will require the 
publication of statutory notices for a 6 week period.  Any options taken forward 
regarding the future delivery of special schooling will require a consultation with 
stakeholders.  The responses to this would form a further report to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and to the Executive in January where a decision will be taken as 
to whether to publish statutory notices for a further 6 week period.   
 
Risk Management: 
 
The SEN “Improvement Test” which is a professionally based quality test, will be 
applied against any proposed changes.  Council officers will need to work closely with 
the schools to ensure clear communication retains the confidence of parents 
throughout the proposed consultation and any resulting changes. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 
 
Council officers will work closely with head teachers to involve staff throughout the 
proposed consultation process in order that staff experience and expertise can be 
retained to support pupils and their families.  The proposed changes to a larger school 
could allow for better career progression for all staff than is available in a small school. 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 
 
An on going Equality Impact Assessment is being developed and will draw on the SEN 
Improvement Test. 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 32



 3 

Community Safety: 
 
N/A 
 
Sustainability: 
 
The development of local provision to meet local need, matched to analysis and 
understanding of the changing demographic, is the best way to ensure sustainability.   
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
1. The Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee of 23 November 

preferred option for the delivery of Area Special Schooling in 
Dunstable/Houghton Regis was to merge Glenwood, Hillcrest and 
Weatherfield schools through the closure of two and the prescribed 
alteration of one across all three sites initially or the closure of all three 
schools and the opening of one new school across three or two sites.  The 
Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to 
recommend to the Executive that the statutory consultation on this proposal 
should commence. 
 

2. The Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee is asked to 
recommend to the Executive that statutory consultation should commence 
on the discontinuation of the dyslexia provision at Priory Middle School. 

 
 
Introduction 
 
1. 
 

This paper sets out a proposal for consultation in the Spring regarding the 
option(s) for the development of the agreed model of Area Special School for the 
South of Central Bedfordshire.    
 

2 If the Executive decides to initiate this consultation, then a further report outlining 
the responses will be brought to the Executive for consideration.  Subject to 
consultation the planned date of any change would be April 2012. 
 

3. This paper also sets out a proposal for the publication of statutory notices in the 
Spring for the discontinuation if the dyslexia provision at Priory Middle School to 
take effect from 1 September 2011. This will also be brought to the Executive for 
consideration on 11th January. 
 

Background and Context 
 
4. 
 

On 6 June 2008, the Central Bedfordshire Transition Task Force considered and 
adopted the recommendations of the Review of Special Needs carried out by the 
former Bedfordshire County Council.  This included the recommendation to 
develop Area Special Schools in the Central Bedfordshire area.  It was also 
recommended that specialist provision for pupils with behavioural, emotional and 
social difficulties (BESD) should not form part of the Area Special School brief.   
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 33



 4 

5. In March 2009, the School Forum agreed the changes to the funding formula for 
special schools in order to target funding appropriately to the increasingly complex 
needs of the pupils.  The Review of Special Needs identified that mainstream 
schools had developed their knowledge and expertise in meeting a broader range 
of needs, and an increasing number of parents have chosen mainstream 
education for their child, even when they met the admissions guidance for a 
special school.  
 

6. On 23 June 2009, the Executive agreed to initiate a consultation on the options for 
the future of special schooling in the East of Central Bedfordshire.  On 8 December 
2009 the Executive considered the responses to the consultation and supported 
the proposed merger of Hitchmead and Sunnyside schools to create an Area 
Special School. Statutory proposals led to the decision to cease to maintain 
Hitchmead Foundation Special School from 31 August 2010.  
 

7. Related proposals to make a prescribed alteration to Sunnyside Community 
Special School to become an Area Special School for pupils with complex needs 
aged 3-19 across the two existing sites from 1 September 2010 were approved by 
the Executive on 8 April 2010.   
 

8. On 1 September 2010 the new Ivel Valley Area Special School opened across the 
two sites. 
 

9. In March 2010, the Executive agreed the Education Vision for Central 
Bedfordshire, with specific reference to Inclusion and Special Needs.  This 
included reducing out-of-authority specialist placements by re-allocating resources 
to make provision to meet needs locally; developing the concept of Area Special 
Schools with a broader role for delivering services to mainstream schools; 
championing the needs of all pupils (including underperforming and vulnerable 
groups); and supporting federations, trusts and partnerships in developing locally 
delivered targeted services to support prevention, early identification and effective 
interventions. 
 

10. The implementation of the Vision is currently being implemented through four 
area reviews, the first of which commenced in April 2010 in the Dunstable and 
Houghton Regis area and on which the Committee have received verbal 
updates.  As part of this work, a project group was formed of Council officers 
and nominated representatives of schools in Dunstable and Houghton Regis.  
This group is undertaking the early work of analysis of inputs to the review, 
including data related to SEN and inclusion, of current provision and of the 
impact of service challenges and new policies developed by the coalition 
Government.   
 

11. Headteachers of the special schools in this area have been working with 
Governors and officers to consider the advantages and disadvantages of 
possible options.   
 

Out of Authority Specialist School Provision 
 
12. 22 children and young people are currently placed in specialist residential 

schools out of Central Bedfordshire and 2 in non-residential specialist schools.   
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 34



 5 

13. The cost of this external provision ranges from £31,000k to £187,000 for each 
child, although one particularly complex case costs £300,000 per annum. Some 
of these costs are shared between Children’s Services and the Primary Care 
Trust (PCT).   
 

14. For the very small numbers of the most complex children and young people, 
those with very severe learning difficulties, Autism and extreme challenging 
behaviour, local provision may not be a cheaper option. However, in general, 
the outcomes for children and young people should be better if they are able to 
receive appropriate education and care locally to Central Bedfordshire as their 
families are able to remain involved. 
 

15. For a very small number of children who require a very specialist environment 
that cannot be efficiently replicated locally, provision in a neighbouring Council 
may be identified, for example a school with a total sign language environment 
for those profoundly deaf children that require it.  All statements of Special 
Educational Needs for pupils currently in “out of Authority placements” are 
reviewed annually. At the time of the annual review, consideration is given as to 
whether their needs can now be met within Central Bedfordshire.   
 

Area Special Schools 
 
16. Ivel Valley now provides the agreed model of special schooling in the East of 

Central Bedfordshire across two sites. Ivel Valley school is co-located with the 
Maythorn residential provision for children with disabilities, which has resulted in 
the Council being able to meet the needs of some very vulnerable learners who 
might otherwise have been placed out of Authority.   
 

17. Exploration of whether the integrated approach to the most complex pupils with 
Severe Learning Difficulties (SLD), ASD and very challenging behaviour currently 
available between Maythorn and Ivel Valley School could be replicated using the 
Kingfisher site adjacent to Hillcrest School is ongoing. 

18.  The area review of Dunstable and Houghton Regis involves Glenwood (Severe 
Learning Difficulties (SLD) and Profound and Multiple Learning Difficulties (PMLD) 
3-11 years), Hillcrest (SLD/PMLD 11-19 years) and Weatherfield (Moderate 
Learning Difficulties (MLD) 7-16).   
 

19. As of November 2010 the numbers in these schools are: 
 

 Glenwood: 75 including (2 Luton and 1 Bedford Borough) 

 Hillcrest: 64 (including 9 Luton and 1 Bedford Borough) 
 Weatherfield:  93 (including 4 Luton, 1 Bucks, 1 Bedford Borough and 2 

Herts) 
 

 Total:  
 

232 
 
Note:  pupil numbers fluctuate and an accurate number 
on roll will be available on the day of the meeting. 

Agenda Item 13
Page 35



 6 

20. 27 Central Bedfordshire pupils are currently attending Grange School (MLD) in 
Kempston, and 31 attending St John’s School (SLD/PMLD) in Kempston, most of 
whom live geographically closer to Kempston than to Central Bedfordshire special 
schools.  There are 29 Central Bedfordshire pupils at Ridgeway School for 
children with physical disabilities in Kempston.   
 

21. All 3 of the Dunstable/Houghton Regis special schools have had significantly 
higher numbers on roll in previous years, mainly prior  to Luton developing their 
own special school provision for pupils with severe learning difficulties. 
 

22. There is an expected increase in the pupil population in the Dunstable and 
Houghton Regis area to 2031 (plan period) of approximately 48% per age group, 
based on the latest housing figures. As Area Special Schools will serve 
catchments beyond the immediate area, housing increases in other areas of 
Central Bedfordshire will need to be taken into account.   
 

23. Currently 0.85% of pupils aged 3-19 attend special schools, both in and outside of 
Central Bedfordshire.  If the raising of the participation age is implemented, this 
will have implications for the continued provision for learners who currently attend 
Oak Bank and Weatherfield schools and leave at 16.  As the population 
increases, an increase will be required in the amount of local provision available 
in special schools. 

24. As set out in the Education Vision, potential models of delivery for education 14-
19 and up to 25 for learners who have learning difficulties and disabilities are 
being considered.  Special Schools are now represented on the 14-19 Strategy 
Group and are working with colleges and Upper Schools to support transition and 
ensure the delivery of a range of appropriate courses that meet the needs and 
aspirations of the most vulnerable students.  If this approach is successful, more 
post school learners will be maintained in local provision that meets their needs.  
 

 Proposed options for the delivery of Area Special Schooling in 
Dunstable/Houghton Regis 
 

25. A number of early options were identified, and advantages and disadvantages of 
these options considered by the special school head teacher group.  These were 
considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 23 November 2010.  
Further work has been undertaken with the three special schools to agree and 
amend the advantages and disadvantages of the options.  
 

 (a) 
 

Option 1:  
 

 For the three Special Schools to decide to form a partnership under 1 
Governing Body – this is broadly the maintenance of the status quo with 
some changes to leadership and governance. 

 
 The schools would still retain their DfE number, would have separate 

budgets and would be inspected separately.  Federated schools can 
consider Academy status when DfE open up the route to Academy for 
non outstanding schools and special schools or if an Ofsted rated 
outstanding school is in the Federation. 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 36



 7 

 Savings would be minimal.  
 

 Advantages:  
 

 •  The governing body would be taking account of the interests of all of the 
schools and their pupils. 
 

 •  This could provide some flexibility for school organisation and delivery 
of the curriculum. 

 
 •  The governing body would be able to move money from one school to 

another to meet priorities. 

 Disadvantages: 
 

 •  This may not achieve anything more than is already possible with the 
existing configuration. 
 

 •  This would not deliver the proposed model of Area Special School.  

 •  There would be no saving in the “lump sum” element of the delegated 
budget as set out in the School Funding Formula. 

 •  Although there are no costs or efficiencies on this model, no change 
could lead to the Weatherfield School becoming non- viable in the future 
if more pupils with these needs are educated successfully in 
mainstream provision. 

 
  This option is not considered by any of the special schools to be a 

viable option.  Due to the intended retirement of one of the 
headteachers in April 2012, the headteachers and governors of 
Glenwood and Hillcrest Schools are in agreement that in order to deliver 
a high quality sustainable model of special schooling in the future, they 
would need to come together under one leadership team 
 

 (b) 
 

Option 2: 
 

 To merge Glenwood and Hillcrest into an all age Area Special School 
through the closure of one school and the prescribed alteration of the 
other under one headteacher across the two sites or the closure of both 
and opening of a new school across both sites.  Legislation requires 
that competition would be held to open a new school.  This option 
retains Weatherfield as an MLD School.  

 Advantages 

 •  As most pupils currently transition from Glenwood to Hillcrest it is 
anticipated that this might be welcomed by stakeholders  

 •  This would achieve an Area Special School in the South of Central 
Bedfordshire, providing for the mixture of very complex needs and 
equivalent to Ivel Valley School. 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 37



 8 

 •  Due to existing expertise at Glenwood and Hillcrest schools, this would 
provide the specialist ASD provision currently lacking for Central 
Bedfordshire pupils with MLD and complex ASD.  Pupils with Special 
Educational Needs who are assessed as requiring this type of provision 
currently travel to a Bedford Borough School. 
 

 •  This option could provide a first step towards one Area Special School 
in this geographical area that would make provision for the South and 
West of Central Bedfordshire. 

 Disadvantages 

 •  Closing both schools and opening as one may invoke more opposition if 
the intent is misunderstood. A clear communication strategy that is led 
and supported by the affected schools would be required which means 
that these schools would need to support this option. 

 •  This option is not designed to resolve the lack of post 16 provision for 
pupils with MLD, although they could transfer if appropriate to the newly 
merged school at 16. 
 

 •  This option would not achieve the aim of moving away from separately 
designated schools for SLD and MLD to a model of Area Special 
Schools as in the case of Ivel Valley Area Special School.  
 

 •  This option could create difficulties with admissions as some pupils 
could meet the admissions guidance for both an Area Special School 
and an MLD School. There is a risk that some parents from the east of 
Central Bedfordshire may opt for the MLD school instead of the local 
provision at Ivel Valley School.  This could increase transport costs. 
 

 •  The viability of a stand alone MLD schools would be an issue. 
 

 •  This model would not provide an equitable model across Central 
Bedfordshire. 
 

 (c) 
 

Option 3: 
 

 To merge the 3 schools through the closure of two and the prescribed 
alteration of 1 across all 3 sites initially or the closure of all 3 schools and 
the opening of one new school across 3 or 2 sites.  It would be necessary 
to undertake a competition to open a new school.   

 Advantages 

 •  This would achieve the agreed model of Area Special School, and is 
likely to provide the best basis for long term sustainability and service 
provision. 
 

 •  This would be consistent with the Members’ decision regarding Ivel 
Valley Area Special School and provide an equivalent model to that in 
the east of Central Bedfordshire. 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 38



 9 

 •  Due to the existing expertise at Glenwood and Hillcrest schools, this 
would provide the specialist Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) provision 
currently lacking for Central Bedfordshire pupils with MLD and complex 
ASD.  Pupils with Special Educational Needs who are assessed as 
requiring this type of provision currently travel to a Bedford Borough 
School. 
 

 •  For those pupils currently attending Weatherfield School for whom it is 
appropriate, there would be access to school-based provision post 16. 

 •  There would be increased access to a diverse range of specialist 
resources for all pupils across the 3 sites as appropriate to need and 
age. 

 •  This would provide a substantive centre for professionals from health 
and other services to support future provision for children with complex 
needs.  
 

 •  The size and designation of the school would provide a model for 
dispersed leadership that would provide for the growth of future leaders 
in SEN.  
 

 •  The size of school would provide an economy of scale that would 
support recruitment and retention of high quality staff, and provide 
career development.  It would put the school in a strong position for 
considering future development as a Teaching School. 
 

 •  This could provide an integrated model for coordinating specialist 
peripatetic services and outreach to support the most vulnerable 
children wherever they are receiving education as part of an extended 
role for special schools.  Glenwood School is already the school 
identified for Outreach in this area of Central Bedfordshire. 
 

 •  This would provide focussed professional development for all staff 
working with the most vulnerable children 0-19 and post 19 that 
supports continuity and progression and aids transition into the next 
stage of their lives. 
 

 •  Subject to the Council’s Asset management Policy, future consideration 
could be given to the disposal of one site and a possible future use of 
capital finance to extend the buildings on another site to create a two 
sited school (primary/secondary). That would reflect the model in the 
East Of the Council.  It should be noted that should the Special Schools 
become an academy or form a Trust, then the schools would have 
ownership of the land.   

 Disadvantages 
 

 •  More objections are possible from parent groups and governing bodies 
if one or more of the school are not in agreement to this strategy, or if 
the intent of this option is misunderstood.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 39



 10 

 Dyslexia Provision 
 

26. Central Bedfordshire currently has 1 middle school provision for Dyslexia at Priory 
Middle School. There are currently 3 pupils in the provision at Priory Middle 
School, two of whom leave in July 2011.  The provision is funded for 7 pupils.  
 

27. When the pupils leave, this arrangement completes guarantees given by the 
legacy Council that pupils could continue in this provision. Provision is already 
being made across all schools and the Council has offered training to both 
teachers and teaching assistants in the accredited Dyslexia training course 
available through University of Northampton and delivered locally.  This course is 
now funded by Central Government.   
 

28. The Council has provided support and training in delivering proven models of 
literacy intervention.  It is therefore proposed that statutory notices are published 
to formally discontinue this provision, which currently costs £57,960 per annum. It 
is also proposed that the school may wish to sell their expertise to Trusts, 
Federations and Partnerships. This is would be for the governing body of the 
school to determine and would not be part of a commission from the Council.  
 

 Conclusion/Next steps 
 

29. Members are asked to consider this report and recommendation for the 
establishment of an Area Special School for the South Bedfordshire area and 
make additional recommendations to the Executive.  

30. Members are asked to consider recommending to the Executive the 
discontinuation of the provision for pupils with dyslexia at Priory Middle School.  

 
 
 
Background Papers: (open to public inspection) 
 
Central Bedfordshire Transition Task Force Group on SEN, Children’s Services 
2008/2009. 
 
Location of papers: Priory House, Chicksands 

Agenda Item 13
Page 40



 
 
Meeting: Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 21 December  2010 

Subject: Quarter Two Performance Report 

Report of: Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services  

Summary: The report highlights the Quarter Two performance for the Children’s 
Services Directorate. 

 
 
Advising Officer: Edwina Grant, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Children’s 

Services  
Contact Officer: Karen Oellermann, Head of Partnerships, Performance and 

Workforce Development 
Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
The Quarterly Performance Report ensures that progress on the delivery of the 
Council’s priorities is monitored.  
 
Financial: 

There are a number of performance indicators within the full corporate suite that have 
a financial link.  
 
It will be important to consider any financial implications in addressing ongoing areas 
of under performance.   
Legal: 

None. 

Risk Management: 

Areas of ongoing underperformance are a risk to both service delivery and the 
reputation of the Council.  
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None. 
  
Equalities/Human Rights: 

It is important that consideration is given to all our Central Bedfordshire communities 
when considering public facing performance indicators – particularly vulnerable 
groups.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14
Page 41



Community Safety: 

There are Children’s Services indicators that relate to ensuring children and young 
people are kept safe.  
 
Sustainability: 

None. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That the Committee notes and reviews Quarter Two performance.   

 
Background 
 
1. 
 

The Council’s framework for performance management supports the delivery of 
the Council’s priorities.  
 

2. 
 

Those indicators that Directors have identified as ‘critical’ make up the 
quarterly performance suite. 
 

3.  The Director’s summary for Quarter 2 is set out below. Appendix A provides 
the detailed performance data.  
 

Performance Summary 
 
 Children’s Services 
4. The Council's performance in protecting vulnerable children and young people is 

good.  Key indicators measuring assessment, stability and review are on target.  
This good performance is being sustained in the context of the increased 
pressures on Children’s Social Care that is being experienced nationally.  Our 
performance in Quarter 2 achieved top or second quartile compared to 2009/10 
national results. 

5.  Two schools currently have an Ofsted “Notice to Improve” – Derwent and Mill 
Vale.  Both received this inspection outcome in previous performance 
quarters. The outcomes for Derwent show that Key Stage 1 remains strong 
within the school.  The school continues to make steady progress and will be 
subject to a full inspection in the near future.  Mill Vale has shown a significant 
improvement in English at Key Stage 2 this year; one of the Key Improvement 
areas.  Mathematics is in line with national and LA averages.   
  

6. An Ofsted monitoring visit has occurred for Mill Vale but was outside the 
reporting period for Quarter 2. This will be reported more fully in Quarter 3 but 
finds progress to date to be unsatisfactory, with Council support for the school 
to be satisfactory.  The report suggested activities and improvements for Mill 
Vale school to follow in the next period of recovery.   
 

7. Performance at Key Stage 2 remained the same as last year.  Action is being 
taken to target key areas of improvement in Key Stage 2 and to support the 
transition midway through the Key Stage from lower to middle schools.  
 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 42



 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – (Quarter 2 Children’s Services Performance Indicators) 
 
Background Papers: (open to public inspection) 
Executive 7 December 2010 - (Quarter 2 Performance Report) 
 
Location of papers: Priory House, Chicksands 

 

Agenda Item 14
Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



#
=
R
ep
or
te
d
by
ac
ad
em
ic
ye
ar
.O
ut
tu
rn
08
/0
9
re
fe
rs
to
S
ep
08
to
A
ug
09

*
=
T
ar
ge
tf
or
ac
ad
em
ic
ye
ar
09
/1
0
an
d
no
tc
om
pa
ra
bl
e
to
qu
ar
te
rly
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s

A
p
p
en
d
ix
A

D
ir
ec
to
r
:
E
d
w
in
a
G
ra
n
t

In
d
ic
a
to
rs

L
in
k
ed

to
L
A
A

N
fE
R

S
ta
ti
st
ic
al

N
ei
gh
b
o
u
rs
U
n
it
G
o
o
d

is
O
u
tt
u
rn

0
9
/1
0

Q
u
ar
te
r
1

A
p
r
-J
u
n
Q
u
ar
te
r
2

Ju
l-
S
ep
t
Q
u
ar
te
r
3

O
ct
-
D
ec

Q
u
ar
te
r
4

Ja
n
-
M
ar

T
re
n
d

C
o
m
p
ar
is
o
n
Y
ea
r
to
D
at
e

P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce

J
u
d
ge
m
en
t

(Q
co
m
p
a
re
d

w
it
h
Q
)

T
ar
ge
t

10
/1
1
C
o
m
m
en
ts

N
I5
9
-
T
h
e
p
er
ce
n
ta
g
e
o
f
in
it
ia
la
ss
es
sm
en
ts

w
it
h
in
se
ve
n
w
o
rk
in
g
d
ay
s
o
f
re
fe
rr
al

N
o

59
.0
%

%
H
ig
h

86
.7
%

94
.6
%

94
.2
%

-
-

Q
tr
on

Q
tr

94
.9
%

G
85
.0
%

O
ur
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
re
m
ai
ns
in
th
e
to
p
qu
ar
til
e
w
he
n
co
m
pa
re
d

w
ith
la
te
st
na
tio
na
lf
ig
ur
es
an
d
w
el
la
bo
ve
ou
r
st
at
is
tic
al

ne
ig
hb
ou
r
av
er
ag
e.
T
he
tim
el
in
es
s
of
in
iti
al
as
se
ss
m
en
ts
is
a

st
ro
ng
in
di
ca
to
r
of
th
e
re
sp
on
si
ve
ne
ss
of
th
e
ch
ild
pr
ot
ec
tio
n

sy
st
em
.
La
st
ye
ar
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
de
cl
in
ed
ac
ro
ss
th
e
co
un
tr
y
as

a
re
su
lt
of
in
cr
ea
se
d
pr
es
su
re
s
an
d
ne
w
re
po
rt
in
g
pr
oc
es
se
s.

T
he
ch
an
ge
fr
om

la
st
qu
ar
te
r
w
as
0.
4%

ag
ai
ns
ta
si
tu
at
io
n

w
he
re
w
e
w
ill
ex
ce
ed
ou
r
ta
rg
et
.

T
he
ac
tu
al
ye
ar
to
da
te
fig
ur
e
is
hi
gh
er
th
an
th
e
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
s

of
th
e
tw
o
re
po
rt
ed
qu
ar
te
rs
du
e
to
re
tr
os
pe
ct
iv
e
da
ta
.T
hi
s

m
ay
am
en
d
th
e
fin
al
ou
ttu
rn
re
po
rt
ed
at
th
e
en
d
of
an
y

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
qu
ar
te
r.

N
I6
2
-
T
h
e
p
er
ce
n
ta
g
e
o
f
ch
ild
re
n
lo
o
ke
d
af
te
r
at

31
M
ar
ch
w
it
h
th
re
e
o
r
m
o
re
p
la
ce
m
en
ts
d
u
ri
n
g

th
e
ye
ar

N
o

11
.7
%

%
Lo
w

9.
2%

1.
1%

2.
3%

-
-

S
ea
so
na
l

2.
3%

G
10
.0
%

T
hi
s
in
di
ca
to
r
m
ea
su
re
s
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
pl
ac
em
en
ts
a
ch
ild
ha
s

ha
d
in
ye
ar
bu
ta
s
nu
m
be
rs
ar
e
lo
w
,v
er
y
fe
w
ch
ild
re
n
ac
tu
al
ly

m
ov
e
in
a
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
qu
ar
te
r.
B
ec
au
se
th
e
in
di
ca
to
r
is
ba
se
d
on

cu
m
ul
at
iv
e
ac
tiv
ity
th
ro
ug
h
th
e
co
ur
se
of
th
e
ye
ar
,

co
m
pa
ris
on
s
ar
e
dr
aw
n
w
ith
th
e
sa
m
e
pe
rio
d
la
st
ye
ar
ra
th
er

th
an
th
e
pr
ec
ed
in
g
qu
ar
te
r.

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
is
be
tte
r
th
an
th
e
sa
m
e
tim
e
la
st
ye
ar
an
d
w
el
l

w
ith
in
th
e
ta
rg
et
ra
ng
e.
C
hi
ld
re
n
ar
e
m
ov
ed
ba
se
d
on
th
ei
r

ca
re
fu
lly
as
se
ss
ed
ne
ed
s.

N
I6
7
-
T
h
e
p
er
ce
n
ta
g
e
o
f
ch
ild
p
ro
te
ct
io
n
ca
se
s

w
h
ic
h
sh
o
u
ld
h
av
e
b
ee
n
re
vi
ew
ed
d
u
ri
n
g
th
e

ye
ar
th
at
w
er
e
re
vi
ew
ed

N
o

94
.4
%

%
H
ig
h

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

-
-

Q
tr
on

Q
tr

10
0%

l
G

10
0%

T
ho
se
w
ith
ch
ild
pr
ot
ec
tio
n
pl
an
s
ar
e
am
on
g
th
e
m
os
t

vu
ln
er
ab
le
ch
ild
re
n.
T
o
be
ef
fe
ct
iv
e,
pl
an
s
m
us
tb
e
ac
tiv
el
y

re
vi
ew
ed
w
ith
in
th
e
re
qu
ire
d
tim
es
ca
le
.
D
es
pi
te
an
in
cr
ea
se
of

13
%
of
ch
ild
re
n
el
ig
ib
le
fo
r
re
vi
ew
s
si
nc
e
31
M
ar
ch
,1
00
%

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
ha
s
be
en
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d.

N
I6
8
-
T
h
e
p
er
ce
n
ta
g
e
o
f
ch
ild
re
n
in
n
ee
d
th
at

le
d
to
in
it
ia
la
ss
es
sm
en
ts

N
o

61
.3
%

%
H
ig
h

68
.2
%

52
.1
%

67
.1
%

-
-

Q
tr
on

Q
tr

59
.5
%

G
65
.0
%

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
is
be
tte
r
th
an
th
e
sa
m
e
tim
e
la
st
ye
ar
an
d
w
el
l

w
ith
in
th
e
ta
rg
et
ra
ng
e.

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
H
o
ld
er
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s
-
C
ll
r
A
n
it
a
M
L
ew
is

P
ag
e
1

S
ea
so
na
l=

C
om
pa
re
d
T
o
T
he
S
am
e
T
im
e
In
T
he
P
re
vi
ou
s
Y
ea
r,
Q
tr
on
Q
tr
=
C
om
pa
re
d
T
o
P
re
vi
ou
s
Q
tr

A
nn
ua
l=
C
om
pa
re
d
T
o
A
F
ix
ed
P
oi
nt
In
P
re
vi
ou
s
Y
ea
r

Agenda Item 14
Page 45



#
=
R
ep
or
te
d
by
ac
ad
em
ic
ye
ar
.O
ut
tu
rn
08
/0
9
re
fe
rs
to
S
ep
08
to
A
ug
09

*
=
T
ar
ge
tf
or
ac
ad
em
ic
ye
ar
09
/1
0
an
d
no
tc
om
pa
ra
bl
e
to
qu
ar
te
rly
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

C
h
il
d
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s

A
p
p
en
d
ix
A

D
ir
ec
to
r
:
E
d
w
in
a
G
ra
n
t

In
d
ic
a
to
rs

L
in
k
ed

to
L
A
A

N
fE
R

S
ta
ti
st
ic
al

N
ei
gh
b
o
u
rs
U
n
it
G
o
o
d

is
O
u
tt
u
rn

0
9
/1
0

Q
u
ar
te
r
1

A
p
r
-J
u
n
Q
u
ar
te
r
2

Ju
l-
S
ep
t
Q
u
ar
te
r
3

O
ct
-
D
ec

Q
u
ar
te
r
4

Ja
n
-
M
ar

T
re
n
d

C
o
m
p
ar
is
o
n
Y
ea
r
to
D
at
e

P
er
fo
rm
a
n
ce

J
u
d
ge
m
en
t

(Q
co
m
p
a
re
d

w
it
h
Q
)

T
ar
ge
t

10
/1
1
C
o
m
m
en
ts

P
o
rt
fo
li
o
H
o
ld
er
C
h
il
d
re
n
's
S
er
vi
ce
s
-
C
ll
r
A
n
it
a
M
L
ew
is

24
8
(5
7)

24
8
(2
2)

24
7
(9
)

-
-

56
(1
0)

58
(3
)

58
(2
)

-
-

14
0
(3
2)

14
5
(1
7)

14
5
(4
)

-
-

51
(1
4)

43
(1
)

42
(3
)

-
-

1
(1
)

2
(1
)

2
(0
)

-
-

In
ad
eq
ua
te

Lo
w

-
Q
tr
on

Q
tr

T
ot
al

-
N
ew

O
ut
st
an
di
ng

O
fs
te
d
ha
ve
re
vi
ew
ed
ho
w
C
ou
nc
ils
ar
e
ju
dg
ed
on
th
ei
r
sc
ho
ol

an
d
co
lle
ge
in
sp
ec
tio
ns
.
T
he
y
no
w
in
cl
ud
e
se
pa
ra
te

in
sp
ec
tio
n
ou
tc
om
es
fo
r
ea
rly
ye
ar
s,
st
at
ut
or
y
sc
ho
ol
an
d
6t
h

fo
rm
.
F
ig
ur
es
fo
r
20
09
-1
0
an
d
Q
1
ha
ve
be
en
up
da
te
d
to

re
fle
ct
th
is
.

T
he
re
ha
ve
be
en
fe
w
er
in
sp
ec
tio
ns
in
Q
ua
rt
er
2.
N
in
e
re
po
rt
s

w
er
e
pu
bl
is
he
d
by
th
e
en
d
of
th
e
re
po
rt
in
g
pe
rio
d.
T
w
o

sc
ho
ol
s
cu
rr
en
tly
ha
ve
an
O
fs
te
d
“N
ot
ic
e
to
Im
pr
ov
e”
–

D
er
w
en
ta
nd
M
ill
V
al
e.

T
he
ou
tc
om
es
fo
r
D
er
w
en
ts
ho
w
th
at
K
ey
S
ta
ge
1
re
m
ai
ns

st
ro
ng
w
ith
in
th
e
sc
ho
ol
.
Y
ea
r
4
at
ta
in
m
en
ti
s
ge
ne
ra
lly
in
lin
e

w
ith
na
tio
na
le
xp
ec
ta
tio
ns
ho
w
ev
er
w
rit
in
g
re
m
ai
ns
an
ar
ea
fo
r

im
pr
ov
em
en
t.
T
he
sc
ho
ol
co
nt
in
ue
s
to
m
ak
e
st
ea
dy
pr
og
re
ss

an
d
w
ill
be
su
bj
ec
tt
o
a
fu
ll
in
sp
ec
tio
n
in
th
e
ne
ar
fu
tu
re
.

M
ill
V
al
e
ha
s
sh
ow
n
a
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
im
pr
ov
em
en
ti
n
E
ng
lis
h
at

K
ey
S
ta
ge
2
th
is
ye
ar
–
on
e
of
th
e
K
ey
Im
pr
ov
em
en
ta
re
as
.

M
at
he
m
at
ic
s
is
in
lin
e
w
ith
na
tio
na
la
nd
LA

av
er
ag
es
.
A
n

O
fs
te
d
m
on
ito
rin
g
vi
si
th
as
ta
ke
n
pl
ac
e
th
is
te
rm
bu
to
ut
si
de

th
e
Q
ua
rt
er
2
pe
rio
d.
O
fs
te
d
co
m
m
en
ts
ar
e
re
fle
ct
ed
in
th
e

D
ire
ct
or
's
co
m
m
en
ta
ry
.

P
u
b
lis
h
ed
O
fs
te
d
sc
h
o
o
la
n
d
co
lle
g
e

cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
s
(n
ew

in
sp
ec
ti
o
n
s
in
b
ra
ck
et
s)

-
N
o.

N
o

G
oo
d

S
at
is
fa
ct
or
y

P
ag
e
2

S
ea
so
na
l=

C
om
pa
re
d
T
o
T
he
S
am
e
T
im
e
In
T
he
P
re
vi
ou
s
Y
ea
r,
Q
tr
on
Q
tr
=
C
om
pa
re
d
T
o
P
re
vi
ou
s
Q
tr

A
nn
ua
l=
C
om
pa
re
d
T
o
A
F
ix
ed
P
oi
nt
In
P
re
vi
ou
s
Y
ea
r

Agenda Item 14
Page 46



 
 
 
Meeting: Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 21 December 2010 

Subject: Work Programme 2010 – 2011 & Executive Forward Plan 
 

Report of: Chief Executive 

Summary: The report provides Members with details of the currently drafted 
Committee work programme and the latest Executive Forward Plan. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Bernard Carter, Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
The work programme of the Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee will 
contribute indirectly to all 5 Council priorities. 
 
Financial: 

n/a 
 
Legal: 

n/a 
 
Risk Management: 

n/a 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

n/a 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

n/a 
 
Community Safety: 

n/a 
 
Sustainability: 

n/a 
 

 

Agenda Item 15
Page 47



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. that the Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

 (a) considers and approves the work programme attached, subject to 
any further amendments it may wish to make; 
 

 (b) considers the Executive Forward Plan; and 
 

 (c) considers whether it wishes to add any further items to the work 
programme and/or establish any Task Forces to assist it in 
reviewing specific items. 
 

 
Work Programme 
 
1. 
 

Attached at Appendix A is the currently drafted work programme for the 
Committee. 
 

2. 
 

Also attached at Appendix B is the latest version of the Executive’s Forward 
Plan so that Overview & Scrutiny Members are fully aware of the key issues 
Executive Members will be taking decisions upon in the coming months. 
Those items relating specifically to this Committee’s terms of reference are 
shaded in light grey. 
 

3. The Committee is now requested to consider the work programme attached 
and amend or add to it as necessary. This will allow officers to plan 
accordingly but will not preclude further items being added during the course 
of the year if Members so wish and capacity exists. 
 

Task Forces 
 
4. 
 

In addition to consideration of the work programme, Members will also need to 
consider how each item will be reviewed i.e. by the Committee itself (over one 
or a number of Committee meetings) or by establishing a Member Task Force 
to review an item in greater depth and report back its findings. 
 

Conclusion 
 
5. Members are requested to consider and agree the attached work programme, 

subject to any further amendments/additions they may wish to make and 
highlight those items within it where they may wish to establish a Task Force 
to assist the Committee in its work. 

Appendices:  

Appendix A:  Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme 2010 – 11 

Appendix B:  The Executive Forward Plan for the period Dec 2010 to Nov 2011 

 

Agenda Item 15
Page 48



Appendix A 

NB: - (R) denotes a ‘reserve’ meeting 

Work Programme for Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee  
2010 - 2011 

 
 

Ref Indicative OSC 
Meeting Date 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

 21 December 2010 (R) Portfolio Holder Update To receive a verbal update from the 
Portfolio Holder regarding current issues 
within Children’s Services 

 

  Base Budget 2011/12 To receive directorate proposals 
regarding the base revenue budget 
2011/12 

 

  Budget Strategy Update To consider an update to the Budget 
Strategy including the supplementary 
savings proposals. 
 

 

  Quarter 2 Budget 
Information  

To receive the directorate’s budget 
monitoring information for the second 
quarter of 20010/11. 

 

  SEN Services To consider the publication of statutory 
notices for the realignment of SEN 
services 

 

  Quarter 2 Performance 
Monitoring 

To receive performance monitoring 
information for the second quarter of 
20010/11. 

 

 25 January 2011 Portfolio Holder Update To receive a verbal update from the 
Portfolio Holder regarding current issues 
within Children’s Services 

 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 49



Appendix A 

NB: - (R) denotes a ‘reserve’ meeting 

Ref Indicative OSC 
Meeting Date 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

  Review of School Places in 
Dunstable & Houghton 
Regis 

To consider a long list of options in light 
of early consultation regarding the 
review of School Places in Dunstable & 
Houghton Regis 

 

  Children and Young 
People’s Plan: New Plan for 
2011/12 

To receive and consider an early report 
outlining draft priorities and consultation 
results regarding the new Children and 
Young People’s Plan for 2011/12 

 

  Child Poverty Strategy To receive and consider the Council’s 
draft Strategy following consideration of 
child poverty generally at the October 
2010 meeting. 

 

  Commissioning of 
PRU/Exclusions 

To consider final arrangements for the 
provision of the Council’s 
PRU/Exclusions service following the 
bidding process. 

 

  Revised 16-19 Transport 
Policy 

 

To consider an updated report, 
consultation findings and a proposed 
policy (initial policy options were 
considered in October). 

 

 01 March 2011 (R)     

 29 March 2011 Portfolio Holder Update To receive a verbal update from the 
Portfolio Holder regarding current issues 
within Children’s Services 

 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 50



Appendix A 

NB: - (R) denotes a ‘reserve’ meeting 

Ref Indicative OSC 
Meeting Date 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

  Children and Young 
People’s Plan: New Plan for 
2011/12 

To receive and consider the new 
Children and Young People’s Plan for 
2011/12 

 

  Review of School Places in 
Dunstable & Houghton 
Regis 

To consider options for informal (pre 
statutory) consultation regarding the 
review of School Places in Dunstable & 
Houghton Regis 

 

  Quarter 3 Performance 
Monitoring 

To receive performance monitoring 
information for the third quarter of 
20010/11. 

 

  Quarter 3 Budget 
Information  

To receive the directorate’s budget 
monitoring information for the third 
quarter of 20010/11. 

 

 14 June 2011  Portfolio Holder Update To receive a verbal update from the 
Portfolio Holder regarding current issues 
within Children’s Services 

 

  Children and Young 
People’s Plan: Achieve 
Economic Well-Being  

 New Municipal Year – this item to 
be confirmed 

  Children’s Trust Annual 
Report 

To receive the annual report of the 
Children’s Trust 

As above 

  Corporate Parenting Panel 
Annual Report 

To receive the annual report of the 
Corporate Parenting Panel 

As above 

  LSCB Annual Report To receive the annual report of the Local 
Safeguarding Children Board 

As above 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 51



Appendix A 

NB: - (R) denotes a ‘reserve’ meeting 

Ref Indicative OSC 
Meeting Date 

Report Title Issue to be considered Comment 

  Quarter 4 Performance 
Monitoring 

 

To receive performance monitoring 
information for the final quarter of 
20010/11 

As above 

  Quarter 4 Budget 
Information  

 

To receive the directorate’s budget 
monitoring information for the final 
quarter of 20010/11 

As above 

 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 52



Appendix B 

 
Central Bedfordshire Council 

Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
1 December 2010 to 30 November 2011 

 
 

1) During the period from 1 December 2010 to 30 November 2011, Central Bedfordshire Council plans to make key decisions on the issues 
set out below.  “Key decisions” relate to those decisions of the Executive which are likely: 
 

 - to result in the incurring of expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant (namely £200,000 or above per annum) 
having regard to the budget for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 
 

 - to be significant in terms of their effects on communities living or working in an area comprising one or more wards in the area of Central 
Bedfordshire. 
 

2) The Forward Plan is a general guide to the key decisions to be determined by the Executive and will be updated on a monthly basis.  Key 
decisions will be taken by the Executive as a whole.  The Members of the Executive are: 
 

 Member Portfolio 
 

 

 Cllr Mrs Tricia Turner MBE Chairman of the Executive and Leader of the Council  
 Cllr Richard Stay Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Policy and Performance   
 Cllr Mrs Rita Drinkwater Portfolio Holder for Housing  
 Cllr Mrs Carole Hegley Portfolio Holder for Social Care and Health   
 Cllr Maurice Jones  Portfolio Holder for Finance, Governance and People  
 Cllr Mrs Anita Lewis Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services  
 Cllr Steve Male Portfolio Holder for Customers, Systems and Assets  
 Cllr Ken Matthews Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth, Skills and Regeneration  
 Cllr David McVicar Portfolio Holder for Safer Communities and Healthier Lifestyles  
 Cllr Tom Nicols Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Development   
 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 53



Appendix B 
 
3) Those items identified for decision more than one month in advance may change in forthcoming Plans.  Each new Plan supersedes the 

previous Plan.  Any person who wishes to make representations to the Executive about the matter in respect of which the decision is to be 
made should do so to the officer whose telephone number and e-mail address are shown in the Forward Plan.  Any correspondence should 
be sent to the contact officer at the relevant address as shown below.  General questions about the Plan such as specific dates, should be 
addressed to the Head of Democratic Services, Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford SG17 5TQ. 
 

4) The agendas for meetings of the Executive will be published as follows: 
 

 Meeting Date 
 

Publication of Agenda  

 08 June 2010 27 May 2010  
 13 July 2010 24 June 2010  
 17 August 2010 05 August 2010  
 28 September 2010 16 September 2010  
 02 November 2010 21 October 2010  
 07 December 2010 25 November 2010  
 11 January 2011 23 December 2010  
 8 February 2011 27 January 2011  
 15 March 2011 3 March 2011  
 5 April 2011 24 March 2011  
 31 May 2011 19 May 2011  
    

 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 54



Central Bedfordshire Council 
 

Forward Plan of Key Decisions for the period 1 December 2010 to 30 November 2011 
 

   Key Decisions 
Date of Publication: 15 November 2010         

 

Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

1. Budget 
Management 
Report - Quarter 2 
-  
 
 
 

To consider the Quarter 
2 Budget Management 
report. 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Maurice R Jones 
Comments by 07/11/10 to Contact 
Officer: 
Matt Bowmer, Assistant Director, 
Financial Services/Chief Finance 
Officer                                            
Email 
matt.bowmer@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 6147 
 
 
 

2. Corporate Budget 
Strategy Update -  
 
 
 

To receive an update to 
the Corporate budget 
Strategy reported to the 
Executive on 2 
November following the 
Spending Review 
announcement on 20 
October 2010. 
 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Maurice R Jones 
Comments by 15/11/10 
Matt Bowmer, Assistant Director, 
Financial Services/Chief Finance 
Officer                                               
Email: 
matt.bowmer@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 6147 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 55



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

3. Future Delivery of 
Music Service -  
 
 
 

To consider future 
delivery of the Music 
Service 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
Schools, partners, stakeholders 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by 07/11/10 to Contact 
Officer: 
Sylvia Gibson, Interim Assistant 
Director, Policy, Planning and 
Commissioning                                     
Email: 
sylvia.gibson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 5598 
 
 
 

4. Annual 
Performance 
Assessment for 
Adult Social Care 
-  
 
 
 

To consider the Adult 
Social Care 
Performance Report. 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Mrs Carole Hegley 
Comments by 07/11//10 to Contact 
Officer: 
Ed Thompson, Assistant Director, Adult 
Social Care                                     
Email: 
ed.thompson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 01582 818060 
 
 
 

5. Growth Area 
Funding 
Programme and 
A5/ M1 Link -  
 
 
 

To consider the 
programme and A5/ M1 
link. 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Ken C Matthews 
Comments by 06/11/10 
Jon Cliff, Head of Growth Programme 
Email: 
jon.cliff@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
Tel: 0300 300 8644 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 56



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

6. Local Bus 
Services and 
Community 
Transport Interim 
Support Strategy -  
 
 
 

To receive the results of 
the consultation and 
definitive options.  
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
Public consultation – 1 October – 
15 November 2010 
 

Report 
 

Cllr David McVicar 
Comments by 05/11/10 
Basil Jackson, Assistant Director 
Highways & Transport                       
Email: 
basil.jackson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 6171 
 
 
 

7. Traffic speed 
management for 
communities in 
Central 
Bedfordshire -  
 
 
 

To consider traffic speed 
management for 
communities in Central 
Bedfordshire 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr David McVicar 
Comments by 06/11/10 
Basil Jackson, Assistant Director 
Highways & Transport                    
Email: 
basil.jackson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 6171 
 
 
 

8. Review of 
centrally 
commissioned 
and managed 
School Meals 
Contract -  
 
 
 

To launch consultation 
with schools on options 
to deliver the school 
meals service. 
 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Stephen F Male 
Comments by 15/11/10 
Ian Brown, Interim AD Assets               
Email: 
ian.brown@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
Tel: 0300 300 5711 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 57



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

9. Local Authority 
Growth Reserve 
to support Town 
Centre-
Regeneration -  
 
 
 

To consider the way 
forward. 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Ken C Matthews 
Comments by 15/11/10 
Liz Wade, Assistant Director Economic 
Growth and Regeneration                   
Email: 
liz.wade@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
Tel: 0300 300 6288 
 
 
 

10. CCTV Review -  
 
 
 

To consider the way 
forward. 
 

11 January 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr David McVicar 
Comments by 11/12/10 
Jane Moakes, Assistant Director 
Community Safety & Public Protection 
Email: 
jane.moakes@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 5441 
 
 
 

11. Draft Budget 
2011/12 -  
 
 
 

To approve the draft 
2011/12 Medium Term 
Financial Plan and 
Capital Programme  for 
consultation. 
 

11 January 
2011 
 

 
Portfolio Holders 
Overview & Scrutiny Committees 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Maurice R Jones 
Comments by 11/12/10 to Contact 
Office: 
Matt Bowmer, Assistant Director, 
Financial Services/Chief Finance 
Officer                                           
Email: 
matt.bowmer@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk Tel 0300 300 6147 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 58



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

12. Review of Fees 
and Charges -  
 
 
 

To review Fees and 
Charges for 2011/12 
 

11 January 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Maurice R Jones 
Comments by 11/12/10 to Contact 
Officer: 
Matt Bowmer, Assistant Director, 
Financial Services/Chief Finance 
Officer                                           
Email: 
matt.bowmer@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 6147 
 
 
 

13. Treasury 
Management 
Strategy -  
 
 
 

To consider the 
Treasury Management  
Strategy 
 

11 January 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Maurice R Jones 
Comments by 15/12/10 to Contact 
Officer: 
Matt Bowmer, Assistant Director, 
Financial Services/Chief Finance 
Officer                                             
Email: 
matt.bowmer@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 6147 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 59



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

14. Future Delivery of 
Special Education 
Needs -  
 
 
 

To consider future 
delivery of Special 
Educational Needs. 
 

11 January 
2011 
 

 
Stakeholders, Schools, Partners, 
Parents 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by 11/12/10 
Mark Wheeler, Interim Assistant 
Director Children's Services Contact 
details:                                          
Email: 
mark.wheeler@centralbedfordshire.gov
.uk  Tel: 0300 300 6044 
 
 
 

15. Annual 
Assessment of 
Children's 
Services 2010 -  
 
 
 

To report the outcome of 
Ofsted’s Annual 
Assessment of 
Children’s Services and 
action to be taken to 
improve future 
assessment outcomes.   
 

11 January 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by 11/12/10 to Contact 
Officer: 
Sylvia Gibson, Interim Assistant 
Director, Policy, Planning and 
Commissioning                               
Email: 
sylvia.gibson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 5598 
 
 
 

16. Mineral 
Safeguarding 
Consultation 
Document -  
 
 
 

To approve the 
document for public 
consultatation. 
 

11 January 
2011 
 

 
Members, the Public, adjacent 
Local Authorities, Parish Councils 
and statutory bodies. 
 

Mineral Safeguarding 
Consultation 
Document 
 

Cllr Tom Nicols 
Comments by 11/12/10 
Lester Hannington, Principal Minerals 
and Waste Planning Officer                   
Email: 
lester.hannington@centralbedfordshire.
gov.uk  Tel: 0300 300 6219 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 60



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

17. Gypsy & Traveller 
Pitch 
Requirements in 
the South of 
Central 
Bedfordshire -  
 
 
 

To examine the needs 
assessment for Gypsy 
and Traveller pitches in 
the south of Central 
Bedfordshire.  
 

11 January 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Tom Nicols 
Comments by 11/12/10 
Richard Fox, Head of Development 
Plan                                                    
Email: 
richard.fox@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
Tel: 0300 300 4105 
 
 
 

18. Budget and 
Capital 
Programme for 
2011/12 -  
 
 
 

To recommend the 
Budget and Capital 
Programme to Council 
on 24 February 2011 for 
approval. 
 

8 February 
2011 
 

 
Portfolio Holders 
Overview & Scrutiny Committees 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Maurice R Jones 
Comments by 05/01/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Matt Bowmer, Assistant Director, 
Financial Services/Chief Finance 
Officer                                           
Email: 
matt.bowmer@centalbedfordshire.gov.
uk Tel: 0300 300 6147 
 
 
 

19. Future Delivery of 
Pupil Referral Unit 
-  
 
 
 

To consider future 
delivery. 
 

8 February 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by 07/01/11 
Alison Bray, Head of School Support 
Email: 
alision.bray@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k  Tel: 0300 300 6825 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 61



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

20. Local Transport 
Plan 3 -  
 
 
 

To consider the LTP3 for 
recommending onto 
Council for approval. 
 

8 February 
2011 
 

 
Members, Stakeholders & General 
Public (01 February 2010 – 31 
October 2010). 
 
Channels of engagement include: 

• Overview & Scrutiny Cttee 
(18/01/2011) 

• Taskforce  
• Local member & district 

councillor 
workshops/meetings 

• Stakeholder workshops 
• Householder surveys 
• On-line presence 

(myjourney website) 
• Public exhibitions 
• Internal briefings 
• Cross border liaison 

meetings 
• Hard copy information 

distribution to hard to 
reach groups 

Press releases 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Tom Nicols 
Comments by 05/01/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Paul Cook, Head of Transport Strategy 
Email 
paul.cook@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
Tel: 0300 300 6999 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 62



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

21. 16 - 19 Transport 
Policy -  
 
 
 

To agree the 16 -19 
Transport Policy 
 

8 February 
2011 
 

 
Schools, Colleges, work based 
learning providers, young people, 
parents 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by 08/01/11 
Sylvia Gibson, Interim Assistant 
Director, Policy, Planning and 
Commissioning Contact Details:               
Email: 
sylvia.gibson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 5598 
 
 
 

22. Budget 
Management 
Report - Quarter 3 
-  
 
 
 

To consider the Quarter 
3 Budget Management 
Report. 
 

15 March 2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Maurice R Jones 
Comments by 15/02/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Matt Bowmer, Assistant Director, 
Financial Services/Chief Finance 
Officer                                             
Email 
matt.bowmer@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 6147 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 63



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

23. Child Poverty 
Strategy -  
 
 
 

To agree the strategy 
which sets out how the 
Local Authority and its 
partners intend to 
reduce child poverty by 
2020.  This includes 4 
targets (relative low 
income, material 
deprivation, absolute 
poverty and persistent 
poverty).  This also 
includes a needs 
assessment to describe 
the characteristics of 
child and family within 
Central Bedfordshire 
and a joint child poverty 
strategy which will 
outline the steps and 
accountability for the 
Local Authority and 
partners. 
 

15 March 2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by 05/02/11to Contact 
Officer: 
Edwina Grant, Deputy Chief Executive 
and Director of Children's Services 
Email: 
edwina.grantt@centralbedfordshire.gov
.uk Tel: 0300 300 4229 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 64



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

24. Biggleswade 
Town Centre 
Strategy and 
Masterplan -  
 
 
 

To consider and formally 
adopt the Biggleswade 
town centre strategy and 
masterplan as a 
supplementary planning 
document. 
 

15 March 2011 
 

 
Non statutory consultation – July 
2009 comprising public exhibition 
Non statutory consultation – 3 July 
to 27 August 2010, 4 public 
exhibitions in addition to web and 
print consultation methods 
Formal statutory consultation – 
Early November 2010 for a period 
of four to six weeks  
 
 

Biggleswade town 
centre strategy and 
masterplan 
 

Cllr Ken C Matthews, Cllr Tom Nicols 
Comments to Contact Officer: 
Liz Wade, Assistant Director Economic 
Growth and Regeneration                   
Email: 
liz.wade@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
Tel: 0300 300 6288 
 
 
 

25. Community Safety 
Partnership 
Priorities and the 
Community Safety 
Partnership Plan 
for 2011 - 2012 -  
 
 
 

To agree and sign off 
the Community Safety 
Partnership Priorities 
and the Community 
Safety Partnership Plan 
for 2011- 12 
 
 

15 March 2011 
 

 
Strategic Assessment & 
Partnership Plan will be 
considered at the CSP Executive 
Meeting in November 2010, 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in January 2011 and the Local 
Strategic Partnership in February 
2011 
 

Strategic 
Assessment Priorities 
& Community Safety 
Partnership Plan 
2011 - 2012 
 

Cllr David McVicar 
Comments by 10/02/11 
Jeanette Keyte, Community Safety 
Manager                                           
Email: 
jeanette.keyte@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk  Tel: 0300 300 5232 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 65



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

26. Dunstable Town 
Centre 
Masterplan -  
 
 
 

To approve the 
Dunstable Town Centre 
Masterplan as Interim 
Technical Guidance for 
Development 
Management Purposes. 
 

15 March 2011 
 

 
• Non statutory consultation – 

April 2009 comprising 
dedicated website, public 
exhibition, stakeholder 
workshop and printed 
consultation methods. 

• Non statutory consultation – 
September 2009 comprising 
dedicated website, public 
exhibition, stakeholder 
workshop and printed 
consultation methods. 

• Formal 6 weeks statutory 
consultation – 18th September 
- 1st November 2010 
comprising dedicated website, 
3 public exhibitions, printed 
consultation methods, 
presentations to relevant 
stakeholders, CDs. 

 
 

Dunstable Town 
Centre Masterplan 
 

Cllr Ken C Matthews, Cllr Tom Nicols 
Comments by 15/02/11 
Liz Wade, Assistant Director Economic 
Growth and Regeneration               
Email: 
liz.wade@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk  
Tel: 0300 300 6288 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 66



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

27. Children and 
Young People's 
Plan -  
 
 
 

That the Executive 
endorse the Central 
Bedfordshire Children 
and Young People’s 
Plan and recommends 
the adoption of the Plan 
to Council. 

 
 

15 March 2011 
 

 

Children and young people, 
parents, carers and stakeholders 
though a variety of mechanisms 
such as workshops, information 
published on website and 
meetings with key partners. 

 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by 01/02/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Sylvia Gibson, Interim Assistant 
Director, Policy, Planning and 
Commissioning                             
Email: 
sylvia.gibson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 5598 
 
 
 

28. Food Law 
Enforcement 
Service Plan 
2011-2012, Age 
Restricted Sales 
Plan 2011-2012 
and the Health 
and Safety (as a 
Regulator) 
Service Plan 
2011-2012 -  
 
 
 

To approve the Food 
Law Enforcement 
Service Plan 2011-2012, 
the Age Restricted Sales 
Plan 2011-2012 and the 
Health and Safety (as a 
Regulator) Service Plan 
2011-2012 
 
 

15 March 2011 
 

 
 
 

Central Bedfordshire 
Enforcement Policy; 
FSA Framework 
Agreement on Local 
Authority Food Law 
Enforcement; Food 
Law Code of Practice 
(England); HSE 
Section 18 Standard 
on Enforcement 
 

Cllr David McVicar 
Comments by 15/02/11 
Susan Childerhouse, Head of Public 
Protection (North)                             
Email: 
susan.childerhouse@centralbedordshir
e.gov.uk  Tel: 0300 300 4394 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 67



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

29. Electricity and 
Gas Supply 
Contracts -  
 
 
 

To approve the use of 
Central Buying 
Consortium’s retendered 
“Flexible Framework” to 
renew the Council’s 
main energy contracts 
for the supply period 
October 2012 to 
September 2016. 
 
 

15 March 2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Maurice R Jones 
Comments by 15/02/11 
Robert Gregan, Head of Procurement 
Email: 
robert.gregan@centralbedfordshire.gov
.uk  Tel: 0300 300 6626 
 
 
 

30. Local Economic 
Plan -  
 
 
 

To approve the Central 
Bedfordshire Local 
Economic Plan.  

 

31 May 2011 
 

 
 
 

Draft final Local 
Economic Plan 
 

Cllr Ken C Matthews 
Comments by 16/11/10 to Contact 
Officer: 
James Cushing, Head of Economic 
Policy   Email 
james.cushing@centralbedfordshire.go
v.uk   Tel: 0300 300 4984 
 
 
 

31. Transforming 
learning and our 
relationship with 
schools - Review 
of school places 
in Dunstable and 
Houghton Regis -  
 
 
 

To consider 
recommendations to 
commence informal (pre 
statutory) public 
consultation for a 12 
week period on a short 
list of preferred 
option(s). 
 
 

31 May 2011 
 

 
 
 

Education Vision, 
Children and Young 
People's Plan, 
Learning 
Transformation 
Dunstable and 
Houghton Regis 
Review Protocol 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by 30/04/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Sylvia Gibson, Interim Assistant 
Director, Policy, Planning and 
Commissioning                                     
Email: 
sylvia.gibson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 5598 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 68



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

32. Transforming 
learning and our 
relationship with 
schools - Review 
of school places 
in Leighton & 
Linslade -  
 
 
 

To consider the 
responses to the 
consultation on the 
preferred option(s) and 
to authorise the 
publication of statutory 
notices. 
 

1 September 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Education Vision, 
Children and Young 
People's Plan, 
Learning 
Transformation 
Dunstable and 
Houghton Regis 
Review Protocol 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by September 2011 to 
Contact Officer: 
Sylvia Gibson, Interim Assistant 
Director, Policy, Planning and 
Commissioning                                   
Email: 
sylvia.gibson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 5598 
 
 
 

33. Transforming 
learning and our 
relationship with 
schools - Review 
of school places 
in Leighton & 
Linslade -  
 
 
 

To approve the statutory 
proposals and financial 
commitment to 
implement the chosen 
option. 
 

1 November 
2011 
 

 
 
 

Education Vision, 
Children and Young 
People's Plan, 
Learning 
Transformation 
Dunstable and 
Houghton Regis 
Review Protocol 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Mrs Anita M Lewis 
Comments by October 2011 
Sylvia Gibson, Interim Assistant 
Director, Policy, Planning and 
Commissioning                             
Email: 
sylvia.gibson@centralbedfordshire.gov.
uk  Tel: 0300 300 5598 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 69



 
 Ref 
No. 

Issue for Key 
Decision by the 
Executive 

Intended Decision Indicative 
Meeting Date 

Consultees and Date/Method Documents which 
may be considered 

Portfolio Holder and Contact officer 
(method of comment and closing 
date) 

 

NON KEY DECISIONS 
 
34. Quarter 2 

Performance 
Report -  
 
 
 

To highlight the key 
Quarter 2 performance 
for Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
 

7 December 
2010 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Richard Stay 
Comments by 01/11/10 to Contact 
Officer: 
Peter Fraser, Head of Partnerships & 
Performance. Email: 
peter.fraser@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k  Tel: 0300 300 6740 
 

35. Quarter 3 
Performance 
Report -  
 
 
 

To highlight the key 
Quarter 3 performance 
for Central Bedfordshire 
Council.  
 

15 March 2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Richard Stay 
Comments by 01/02/11 to Contact 
Officer: 
Peter Fraser, Head of Partnerships & 
Performance.  Email: 
peter.fraser@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k  Tel: 0300 300 6740 
 

36. Quarter 4 
Performance 
Report -  
 
 
 

To highlight key Quarter 
4 performance for 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council. 
 

31 May 2011 
 

 
 
 

Report 
 

Cllr Richard Stay 
Comments by 01/05/11to Contact 
Officer: 
Peter Fraser, Head of Partnerships & 
Performance. Email: 
peter.fraser@centralbedfordshire.gov.u
k  Tel: 0300 300 6740 
 

 
 
Postal address for Contact Officers:  Central Bedfordshire Council, Priory House, Monks Walk, Chicksands, Shefford  SG17 5TQ 
      
 

A
genda Item

 15
P

age 70



 

Central Bedfordshire Council  
Forward Plan of Decisions on Key Issues 

 
For the Municipal Year 2010/11 the Forward Plan will be published on the fifteenth day of each 
month or, where the fifteenth day is not a working day, the working day immediately proceeding 
the fifteenth day, or in February 2011 when the plan will be published on the fourteenth day: 
 

 Date of Publication Period of Plan 
 

 14.05.10 1 June 2010 – 31 May 2011 
 

 15.06.10 1 July 2010 – 30 June 2011 
 

 15.07.10 1  August 2010 – 31 July 2011  
 

 13.08.10 1 September 2010 – 31 August 2011 
 

 15.09.10 1 October 2010 – 30 September 2011 
 

 15.10.10 1 November  2010 –  31 October 2011 
 

 15.11.10 1 December 2010 – 30 November 2011 
 

 15.12.10 1 January 2011 – 31 December 2011 
 

 14.01.11 1 February 2011 – 31 January 2012 
 

 14.02.11 1 March 2011 – 29 February 2012 
 

 15.03.11 1 April 2011 – 31 March 2012 
 

 15.04.11 1 May 2011 – 30 April 2012 
  

 

Agenda Item 15
Page 71



P
age 72

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	10 Base Budget Build and Savings Proposals
	item 10 Budget Build and Savings Proposals App A
	item 10 Budget Build and Savings Proposals App B

	12 Quarter 2 Budget Information
	item 12 Appendices Quarter Two OSv2

	13 The Future of Special Schooling in the South of Central Bedfordshire: Proposal to publish Statutory Notices to discontinue the Dyslexia Provision at Priory Middle School
	14 Quarter 2 Performance Monitoring
	101122-Q2-HighLevelReport CS Final for OandS

	15 Work Programme 2010 - 2011 & Executive Forward Plan
	CS OSC Work Programme App A
	CS OSC Work Programme App B


